
ARCH EXECUTIVE BOARD AGENDA 

October 12, 2023 
Bellevue City Hall, Room 1E-110 

https://kirklandwa-gov.zoom.us/j/96905200722 

9:00 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 

1) Call to Order

2) Approval of the Agenda

3) Approval of the September 2023 Meeting Minutes

4) Public Comment

5) Reports / Action Items

a) HUD Grant Application and Support Letter

b) Affordable Housing Rent Limit Policy Recommendation

c) Q2 2023 Report

6) Other Business

a) Verbal Updates
• North Bend MOA for ARCH Services
• ARCH Incentives Model

7) Adjournment

https://kirklandwa-gov.zoom.us/j/96905200722


1 

ITEM 3:  Approval of the September Meeting Minutes 
Approval of the September Executive Board Meeting minutes 

Attachments 
A. Summary Minutes to Executive Board Meeting (September 14, 2023)



2 
 

A	REGIONAL	COALITION	FOR	HOUSING	(ARCH)	
Summary Minutes to Executive Board Meeting 

 
Date September 14, 2023                                                                          Hybrid Meeting 
9:00am                                                      
 
Board	Members	Present:  

Carol Helland, City of Redmond, Director of Planning and Community Development 
Steve Burns, City of Medina, City Manager 
Diane Carlson, City of Bellevue, Deputy City Manager 
David Pyle, City of Sammamish, Director of Community Development 
Kurt Triplett, City of Kirkland, City Manager 
Maia Knox, City of Clyde Hill, Assistant City Manager 
Alison Van Gorp, City of Mercer Island, Deputy Director, Community Planning & Development 
Wally Bobkiewicz, City of Issaquah, City Administrator 
Simon Foster, King County, Housing, Homelessness and Community Development Division Director 
Scott Pingel, City of Newcastle, City Manager 
Jared Hill, City of Woodinville, Intergovernmental Affairs Coordinator 
Debbie Bent, City of Kenmore, Community Development Director 
Jason Greenspan, City of Bothell, Community Development Director 

 
Board	Members	Absent:	
	  
Others	Present:	
	 Mark Hofman, City of Newcastle, Community Development Director	

Lindsay Masters, ARCH, Executive Director 
Raquel Rodriguez, ARCH, Program Coordinator 
Diana Heilman, ARCH, Senior Administrative Assistant 
Adam Matza, ARCH, Rental Program Officer 
Yelias Bender, ARCH, Senior Program Officer 
Nicole Palczewski, ARCH, Housing Program Intern 
Linda Abe, City of Bellevue, Affordable Planning Housing Manager 
Rebecca Deming, City of North Bend, Community & Economic Development Director 
Xochitl Maykovich, King County, Housing Policy & Special Projects Manager 
Ian Lefcourte, City of Redmond, Senior Planner 
Jason Gauthier, Pierce County, SSHA3P 
Mary Connolly 
Caroline 
Andrea Harrington 
 

1.	 CALL	TO	ORDER	
	
Ms. Helland called the meeting to order at 9:01 am.  
 
2.	 APPROVAL	OF	THE	AGENDA		
	
Ms. Helland asked for changes to the agenda of September 14, 2023. No changes were made. 
 
3. APPROVAL	OF	THE	MINUTES	
	
Ms. Helland asked for changes to the meeting minutes for July 13, 2023. No changes were made. 
	
4.		 PUBLIC	COMMENT	
	
No public comment. 



3 
 

 
 
5.  REPORTS / ACTION ITEMS  
 
 
5a)  Legislative Priorities 
 
Ms. Helland introduced the topic and asked that the Board be sure to discuss how the legislative priorities will be 
distributed if any are going forward. 
 
Ms. Masters presented the topic, reminding the Board this is one of the priorities that the Board elevated in ARCH’s 
Work Program for the next year.  A survey and legislative workshop was conducted this summer for member staff 
identified by each Board member. Overall themes were that affordable housing is still a top priority for most cities. 
There is a desire to act as a united coalition with ARCH helping to provide education and coordinate advocacy. 
Local leadership wants to see affordable housing in East King County and within their own jurisdictions.  
 
The discussion on revenue focused on how to balance competing revenue goals and potential policy adjustments to 
HB 1628. Potential policy adjustments were discussed such as progressive tiers, flexibility for existing REET, 
modified structure for local jurisdictions to receive a credit against State REET and exempting commercial 
development. Ms. Masters said there was a lot of alignment on these policies but the need for advocating for the big 
picture was reinforced. 
 
The TOD bill was discussed. There were many problems with the bill one of which was the potential lost 
opportunity to get affordable housing out of the upzones. There was strong consensus to ensure affordable housing 
outcomes in the bill. The goals need to align with housing needs in the GMA, but flexibility is critical. Cities will 
need to have time to figure out how to implement this. 
 
Based on the discussion two priorities were crafted. The first is similar to the priority supported last year, as 
conveyed by a letter from the Chair encouraging cities to help advocate.  The second is a new priority that was 
difficult to craft due to a lot of potential concerns. This priority highlights what would be important in a TOD bill.  
 
Ms. Masters opened it up for the Board to give feedback on the language on how it should be shared with each 
individual city. Ms. Helland asked for feedback on the question on whether the language of the draft priorities is 
appropriate or does it need adjustments.  
 
Mr. Pingel said he would like the approach to be flexible. He said if there is not support for an additional .25 
percent for REET maybe there could be more flexibility in how they can use it for affordable housing. For 
Newcastle they would like an option that would enable them to move affordable housing out of the general fund.  
 
Ms. Helland agreed there was a clear message at the workshop that small cities would like flexibility to use existing 
REET. They may be REET rich and general fund poor. She said she and Lindsay had worked on taking that into 
account in how the language was drafted. Mr. Pingel said he did not have suggestions to changes in the language, 
but he wants to be able to explain to his council that this is where ARCH is headed.  
 
Mr. Triplett said he supports this approach. He believed the language is broad enough and flexible enough. He had 
a question about the process. He thought a letter from the Chair or Executive Director giving their recommendation 
would be helpful. Ms. Helland said to wait to discuss process. 
 
Ms. Knox wanted to echo the desire for flexibility. She suggested that they include the word “new” to the first 
priority. Carol asked if they could say “new and flexible funding options”. Ms. Knox agreed. 
 
Ms. Carlson said she does not have any language concerns about the first priority. The second one is very detailed 
and has many pros and cons, so Bellevue is planning on having something like this in their agenda. She suggested 
“affordable housing should be a priority” instead of “top priority”.  She also suggested removing the word 
“ambitious”.  



4 
 

 
Ms. Van Gorp also agreed that the term “ambitious” was hanging them up. This change aligned with what they were 
thinking. 
 
Mr. Greenspan touched on the definitions of transit and asked about the use of the term “fixed route transit”. He 
asked how these priorities will be communicated to his city council and specified he wants the core elements 
communicated to his council.  
 
Ms. Helland said process questions would be addressed next and asked if anyone had any remaining concerns on 
the language.  None were given.  
 
Ms. Helland said that the words “near fixed route transit” were added to refer to light rail and bus rapid transit. She 
asked if there were concerns that they should clarify “frequency” with that understanding of the definition of “fixed 
route transit”.  Mr. Greenspan said he was not overly concerned, but he had concerns about how that would be 
communicated to cities. He did not believe it was necessary to adjust the language as long as they were providing 
clarity.  
 
Mr. Pyle said he supported those edits. He said in Sammamish they are very interested in development in strategic 
locations in the city in order to invite development of fixed route transit. They hope to gain the frequency and 
maintain the frequency of transit. They are focused on just getting fixed route transit, then they could add 
affordability along strategic corridors.  
 
Mr. Triplett appreciated the concern about the words “top priority” and “ambitious”, but noted the risk that with 
these changes then affordability is just a goal among many goals, and the language does not convey it is as 
something that must happen. Something needs to be in there that affordable housing must be included in transit-
oriented development, otherwise it may make it too generic for legislators. 
 
Ms. Van Gorp said there is some nuance there. She said Mercer Island is struggling with the ambitious goals on 
density and how much housing needs to be built exactly where. It is not flexible, but she agreed that affordability 
part should be the top priority. They were getting hung up that the ambitious goals should be set for TOD in regard 
to density.  
 
Ms. Masters put the edits on the screen for everyone to see. Ms. Carlson suggested that “affordable housing should 
be “included” or “required” instead of “a top priority”. Ms. Helland agreed and asked if everyone was ok with that. 
Mr. Triplett agreed.  
 
Mr. Hill said one of the issues that has been brought up is with the fixed route transit. That can change so 
frequently. He said in Woodinville they get double counted for transit due to the turn around. He wondered if they 
could say “light rail and BRT’ to be sure it is not confused. Ms. Helland said that might be appropriate, but she said 
“fixed rail transit” is defined as light rail and BRT. Ms. Masters said that could be captured in the letter. Mr. Hill said 
that would be great. 
 
Ms. Helland asked if anyone had more discussion about the changes. She asked if they had reached consensus on 
the legislative objectives for ARCH. She asked if anyone said “no”. Mr. Hill asked if they were going to be taking a 
position on both of these at the same time. He said the Woodinville council has not had a position on one of these 
priorities so they would prefer to stay neutral. Ms. Helland said this would be part of the process discussion.  
 
Ms. Helland asked for a vote on the edits as displayed on the screen. 
 

“Funding for Affordable Housing: [CITY] supports new and flexible funding options for local jurisdictions 
that address the need for affordable housing, such as local option Real Estate Excise Tax (REET). Such 
options should be progressively structured to best meet the needs of low and moderate income 
households.” 
 



5 
 

“Affordable Housing Near Fixed Route Transit: Affordable housing should be required in future 
planning for growth near fixed route transit. [CITY] supports setting affordability goals for transit-oriented 
development, and providing local flexibility and planning resources to help communities achieve those 
goals.” 

 
Ms. Helland asked if there were any other discussion points. None were given. 
 
Ms. Helland asked to entertain a motion to adopt the language of the draft priorities as shown on the screen.  
Mr. Triplett moved for adoption of the priorities as displayed on the screen. Ms. Van Gorp seconded the motion. 
Approved unanimously. 
 
Ms. Helland directed the conversation to the process. Ms. Masters said this letter could go at the same time as the 
letter going to councils regarding the recommended budget and work program for next year, which is transmitted 
this month. 
 
Ms. Helland asked what the recent letter transmitted was. Ms. Masters said it was about the strategic planning 
process. Ms. Helland clarified it was informational. Ms. Helland wanted to know how many Board members 
completed that. When asked if there were any who didn’t, none responded. 
 
Ms. Carlson said that worked well. She would like ARCH to continue the process of distributing to the Board so that 
Board members can distribute to their councils. Ms. Helland asked if Ms. Carlson’s proposal included ARCH drafting 
a letter to be provided to Board members to distribute to their councils. Ms. Carlson said she didn’t know if that 
was necessary for this.  
 
Mr. Bobkiewicz said they were overthinking this. He said they should trust each Board member to handle their 
own process for their jurisdiction.  
 
Ms. Helland said they would only forward the legislative language that they have agreed on, and Board members 
would present that language in the context of their legislative agenda updates with their councils.  
 
Ms. Masters said last year they did a short letter to explain the process in developing the priorities and presenting 
the suggested priorities. It would not be a formal resolution. The Board member could decide how to present it. 
 
Ms. Helland asked how everyone felt about that. No disagreement was expressed. She clarified that the letter would 
come from the Board Chair. 
 
Ms. Helland asked if the Board had interest in letting ARCH prepare the letter. She asked if there were other 
education materials that could be used to facilitate advocacy.  Mr. Pyle said they would appreciate that. He said the 
degree that they had information to inform lobbyists would be helpful. He was curious as to who the audience 
would be.  
 
5b)  Middle Housing and HB 1110 Opportunities Report (continued from July) 
 
Ms. Masters presented the Middle Housing bill implementation including the basic requirements of the bill. She 
presented the specific density thresholds and said there were concerns about whether these would really achieve 
affordable housing as they were crafted in the bill. There were amendments to add flexibility on affordable housing 
provisions, but there are questions on how these will be interpreted by the Department of Commerce. A dialogue 
will be maintained with that staff.  
 
How to take advantage of the flexibility in the bill to maximize affordability will be a key question.  Ms. Masters 
highlighted options for implementation. She said ARCH would be looking to advise cities including how to calibrate 
that and make it work. Cities will have option to go beyond requirements of the bill.  She shared examples from 
Redmond and Kirkland’s Inclusionary Programs.  
 



6 
 

Ms. Masters said she would like the Board to kickoff a discussion on how the coalition can work together to 
implement the affordable housing aspects of the bill.  She would also like to tie this to applying for a HUD grant 
funding to support some of that work. Some cities are pursuing Commerce grants, too. 
 
Ms. Helland asked whether the support from ARCH would help jurisdictions both identify opportunities to meet 
1110 or revise a current program that was established under 1110 or exceed that program for all three objectives. 
Ms. Masters said it could be all three of those.  
 
Ms. Helland asked about the timing. She asked if only the larger ARCH cities were updating the comprehensive 
plans subject to the six-month requirement under 1110 or were all the cities.  Ms. Masters said she understood that 
all ARCH cities were required to bring their density up to 2 units per lot. 
 
Ms. Van Gorp said for medium-sized cities there is a lot of work to do.  She said her city only has affordable housing 
requirements in their town center right now. This is opportunity to change zoning for the whole city. 
 
Mr. Pyle agreed. He added the application in Sammamish is limited due to HOA covenants. Unless the HOA chooses 
to amend their covenant to allow for other types of development, those covenants trump 1110. Because 80% of 
Sammamish is covered by HOA covenants, they would like to partner with grant funding to explore how to 
approach HOAs. Ms. Helland asked whether 1110 exempts Sammamish from doing the planning work.  Mr. Pyle 
agreed, but noted you may not go far in your planning if it will never be applied. 
 
Mr. Greenspan said they are poised to amend their comp plan to implement the basics of 1110, but they need 
guidance from ARCH on how much further they can push things beyond the basics and understanding Commerce’s 
expectations. He asked how engaged ARCH has been with Commerce. Ms. Masters said that ARCH staff was invited 
to be on the technical committee to prepare the model ordinance and are pushing for guidance.  
 
Mr. Pyle noted how 1110 may put them out of sync with regional planning. Sammamish was told by PSRC that they 
cannot increase comp plan future land use capacity in order to incentivize the affordability that they need to do 
because it throws off the regional planning balance. Ms. Helland said that would be a conversation for another day. 
 
Ms. Helland said she will combine conversation for items 5c and 5b. She asked for confirmation that there is 
uncontested support for ARCH providing resources and opportunities for compliance with HB 1110. Board 
members concurred.  
 
 
5c)        HUD grant opportunity – Xochitl Maykovich  
 
Ms. Helland turned it over to Ms. Masters to introduce the topic of joining with King County and other jurisdictions 
to apply for the HUD grant under the Pathways to Removing Obstacles to Housing. She asked if that would make 
our application stronger. 
 
Ms. Masters introduced Simon Foster and Xochitl Maykovich from King County to discuss this possible joint 
application. Ms. Masters presented slides to explain the purpose of the grant in reducing barriers to affordable 
housing, giving examples of potential work the grant could fund and what would make the application competitive. 
 
Ms. Maykovich said King County first considered how the grant could help them implement their comprehensive 
plan goals within urban unincorporated King County. They realized they would be more competitive if partnering 
with other entities, so reached out to SKHHPP and ARCH. The idea is this could provide staff support helping 
jurisdictions as well as consulting and community engagement resources. She said they do not have a specific 
overarching strategy because the needs of each jurisdiction are different. Some cities have identified need for 
assistance with overhauling their housing code or assistance with coming up with strategies for incentivizing 
developers to build housing that meets the needs of immigrant households. Perhaps one consulting contract could 
be done for several jurisdictions. There could be a need for legal help. She expressed that they want to make the 
resources flexible and the application flexible.  
 



7 
 

Ms. Masters said she personally was excited to have this opportunity due to the fact that it looked like it would be 
difficult in the next few years to find other resources to add planning capacity. She opened it up to the Board to 
discuss.  
 
Mr. Triplett said it seemed logical to pursue it, and asked if it would be a re-grant from King County. Ms. Maykovich 
said they would try to keep it high level in the application but it could be a sub-grant to ARCH. Dealing with the 
HUD audit requirements would be an issue to consider. The County could hold the consultant contracts.   
 
Ms. Helland asked if the Board was supportive of ARCH pursuing the collaborative application. She said the details 
would have to be ironed out. Ms. Masters added she had reached out to Bellevue and there are no immediate red 
flags with receiving federal funds through Bellevue and housing staff there.  
 
Ms. Helland asked the Board if they are supportive directing ARCH to pursue the collaborative application.  She 
asked if anyone was uncomfortable. Mr. Greenspan asked if their councils would need to do anything between now 
and the end of October. Ms. Maykovich said the application would be stronger with letters from jurisdictions, but it 
is not mandated. Board members concurred with pursuing the grant. 
 
Ms. Masters said they will be reaching out to city staff next to flesh out ideas for how to use grant funds.  
 
5d)        Q1 2023 Report 
 
Ms. Masters says the report had been submitted with revised formatting per prior direction from the Board. 
Discussion on the format can continue at a future meeting as time allows. 
 
6) OTHER BUSINESS  

 
• Verbal Updates 

• North Bend MOU Interest 
 

Ms. Masters introduced Rebecca Deming, Director of Community and Economic Development in the City of North 
Bend. They are a smaller city not subject to HB 1110. They have started an MFTE program which is just one site so 
far. It has 128 units of which 28 are affordable. She asked for ARCH assistance in managing the MFTE units and the 
annual reporting. They would pay for the hourly time, with the city being reimbursed by the developer.  
 
Ms. Helland said ARCH is hoping that in the process of doing its Strategic Plan Update they will get a reaffirmation 
of the role of ARCH and explore expanded roles with other jurisdictions. She said she had some trepidation in 
moving forward with the addition of more work for ARCH when they are in the process of this evaluation of 
priorities. She opened up the issue to the Board for discussion. 
 
Ms. Van Gorp said she wondered how much work this would be in terms of MFTE.  She asked how would affect the 
current ARCH staff. Ms. Masters said it would affect a couple staff – one who does annual reporting for the 
Department of Commerce for jurisdictions who have MFTE and a staff person who does the Rental Program 
compliance monitoring.  That program has about 70 properties. She noted that they are not at the tipping point yet 
with capacity, but this would tie up capacity for future new projects. 
 
Ms. Carlson applauded North Bend for having their first MFTE project. She agreed that capacity is a concern. She 
also added that legally they would be taking on risks by taking on projects that are not part of the organization. 
That would have to be explored in further conversation.  
 
Mr. Pyle appreciated getting regional consistency on these projects. He noted that Sammamish is looking at a 
budget reduction for their general fund. They are seeing costs increases in contracts. They have noted increases in 
ARCH dues. He asked if this would take up some of the capacity they are paying for in the increase of dues.  
 



8 
 

Ms. Masters said the 2024 budget recommendations have already been advanced, but if this project moved 
forward with unanticipated revenue it could be incorporated into the 2025 budget deliberations. They would have 
to figure out how much the contract is going to generate. It might offset other dues. 
 
Ms. Helland asked if it might be possible to put any funds in reserves that had to be shifted for legal funding earlier 
in the year. Ms. Masters said that was possible. The Board would be able to decide how to accommodate that 
revenue.  
 
Ms. Knox echoed appreciation for North Bend’s request. She suggested that ARCH perhaps provide materials and 
resources or even a limited amount of time if there is not capacity for full support.  
 
Mr. Greenspan asked Rebecca if there were other alternatives that they had considered.  She said that they had not 
had time yet to consider other alternatives because it was just adopted six months ago.  The first certificate of 
occupancy is expected next week. She has learned about another agency that they might reach out to. The project 
should be finished in February.  
 
Mr. Pingel said he agreed with David. He said if there is an opportunity to bring in additional revenue, they should 
take advantage of that. 
 
Mr. Triplett left the meeting at 10:30 am. 
 
Ms. Helland asked for a motion to respond to North Bend’s request to enter into a contract with ARCH for 
administration of affordable housing units. 
 
Mr. Pyle moved to respond to North Bend’s request for ARCH support in managing affordable housing covenants 
related to an MFTE project in North Bend. Ms. Van Gorp seconded the motion.  
 
Ms. Helland put the motion to a vote. 
 
The motion was approved. The vote was 8 in favor; 2 opposed; 1 abstention.  
 
Ms. Helland said these types of requests need to be a component of the strategic plan. She directed Ms. Masters to 
figure out how to make this contract work for the ARCH staff. She asked if there were any other questions. 
 
Ms. Carlson asked if they would have a conversation about the liability component. She expected it would be in the 
contract. Bellevue will work with Ms. Masters on that.  
 
Ms. Helland encouraged North Bend to have a Plan B. She did wish North Bend well in their MFTE project. She 
thanked Rebecca for attending. 
 
Ms. Masters will bring back to the Board next month what is determined regarding the contract. Other verbal 
updates would be presented at a future meeting. 
 
7) ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 10:36 am. 
 



ITEM 5C:  HUD Grant Update and Support Letter 
Update on HUD grant application with King County and South King Housing and 
Homelessness Partners (SKHHP) and support letter template 
 
Background 
At the September meeting, the Board discussed and provided its approval for ARCH to 
work on a joint grant application with King County and SKHHP for funding from the 
Pathways to Removing Obstacles to Housing (PRO Housing) program, which supports 
communities to remove barriers to affordable housing. Detailed information on the grant 
opportunity was presented at the meeting. 
 
Since then, staff from all three partners have collaborated on an application that is expected 
to be posted for a public review period by October 12, per HUD requirements (link to be 
shared when available). The proposal incorporates input gathered from member city staff 
on potential needs and opportunities over period of the grant, and includes a subgrant to 
ARCH that would fund planning and community engagement activities. The final 
application will be submitted in late October once it is revised based on public input. 
 
The Board also directed staff to prepare a template support letter, which is attached. Due to 
limitations on page numbers for the application, staff have prepared a single letter to be 
signed by multiple jurisdictions. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommend the Board review the attached support letter and provide direction for 
ARCH to gather member signatures. 
 
Attachments 

1. PRO Housing Grant Support Letter Template 

https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/pro_housing


Re: Letter of Support – PRO Housing Grant – King County, WA 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The member cities of A Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) are writing to express our 
enthusiastic support of King County’s PRO Housing grant application. Our joint proposal with 
King County and the South King Housing and Homelessness Partners (SKHHP) builds on the 
long history of collaboration in affordable housing funding, policy, planning and programs 
among our jurisdictions.  

ARCH was formed in 1992 and has successfully established common policies and programs, 
including pooled capital funding and inclusionary housing programs, that have resulted in nearly 
10,000 affordable units created or in the pipeline in East King County. We are currently poised 
for the expansion of regional light rail and bus rapid transit systems, and are collectively working 
to adopt Comprehensive Plans by 2024 that will set the stage for our next 20 years of growth. 
We have a unique opportunity to leverage these opportunities, as well as recent state legislative 
mandates around housing and zoning, to maximize affordable housing outcomes in our region.  

As a coalition, we are committed to making East King County an equitable region of opportunity 
that provides housing choices for people of all incomes. This grant would provide critical 
resources, including funding for equitable planning and engagement processes, to break down 
the most significant barriers to affordable housing. If we are successful, our results will amplify a 
model for how high-cost regions can work through multi-jurisdiction collaborations to tackle 
affordable housing.  

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

 

 



ITEM 5B:  Rent Limit Policy Recommendation 
Discussion of a draft recommendation regarding rent limit policies within members’ 
affordable housing programs and projects 
 
Background 
Since 2022, ARCH has undertaken a policy development process in response to rent 
increases on low- and moderate-income tenants in affordable housing. The Board has been 
briefed and provided guidance throughout the process as follows:  

• July 2022: Direction on initiating a policy development process and establishment of 
policy goals 

• October 2022: Briefing and discussion of input from stakeholder focus groups, 
interviews and surveys 

• November 2022: Continued discussion and direction to narrow policy options and 
form a working group 

• April 2023: Update on work group deliberations and direction on final steps in the 
policy development process 

• July 2023: Briefing on final work group recommendation and direction to initiate a 
public comment period through September of 2023 and collect input on 4 options 
(Tenant-based 3.0% cap, Tenant-based 5.0% cap, Graduated cap of 3-9%, Graduated 
cap of 3-6%) 

 
Outreach Efforts 
ARCH staff worked diligently during the public comment period to generate awareness of 
the policy and solicit input from those who hadn’t already participated in the stakeholder 
process, particularly renters who live in affordable housing or are in need of affordable 
housing.  are most likely to be affected by the policy. Outreach efforts included: 

• Designed an online survey to explain the policy in simple terms and gather input on 
all 4 options 

• Provided translation instructions to access the survey in the most common 
languages 

• Hosted a community meeting to present the policy and hold small group discussions 
• Designed a flyer and QR code to promote the survey  
• Attended multiple in-person locations to distribute the flyer and answer questions 

about the topic (Kirkland back to school event, Bellevue Mini City Hall, Together 
Center grand opening, etc.) 

• Promoted the survey and event through 36 agency staff contacts and invited all 
apartments with ARCH properties to help post in their buildings 

• Shared invitation with ARCH mailing list 
• Posted information on website, Facebook and the Together Center portal 
• Invited all stakeholders who participated in the first phase of outreach to complete 

the survey.  
 
At the October meeting, staff will present the results of the public comment collected 
through September 24 and walk the Board through a draft recommendation for discussion 
and potential approval.  



 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommend the Board discuss the draft recommendation and determine whether to 
modify or identify additional information needed to finalize a recommendation at the 
November meeting.  
 
Attachments 

1. Draft ARCH Rent Limit Policy Recommendation 



  
 
 

  

BEAUX ARTS VILLAGE ♦ BELLEVUE ♦ BOTHELL ♦ CLYDE HILL ♦ HUNTS POINT ♦ 
ISSAQUAH ♦ KENMORE ♦ KIRKLAND ♦ MEDINA ♦ MERCER ISLAND ♦ NEWCASTLE ♦ REDMOND ♦ 

SAMMAMISH ♦ WOODINVILLE ♦ YARROW POINT ♦ KING COUNTY 

A Regional Coalition for Housing 
 

Together Center Campus 
16305 NE 87th St. Suite 119 

Redmond, WA 98052 
(425) 861-3677 

ARCH MEMBERS 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:   ______, 2023 

From:  ARCH Executive Board 

To:   ARCH Members 

Subject: Affordable Housing Rent Limit Policy Recommendations 
 

ARCH supports many member jurisdictions in East King County with the administration of local 
affordable housing programs, including programs that provide land use or tax incentives in 
exchange for setting aside affordable units in market rate developments, as well as a Trust Fund 
program that invests city funding in subsidized affordable developments. The following memo 
provides ARCH’s recommendations for rent limit policies that would apply to affordable 
housing. 
  
Background: Current Rent Limit Policies 
Under most members’ affordable housing program regulations, affordable rent limits are 
currently set each year based on the rate of change in the Area Median Income or “AMI,” which 
is published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Several 
member cities’ codes define “median income” using an outdated federal citation that has 
created a lack of clarity in ARCH’s administration, an issue that this recommendation is 
intended to correct. 

The policy of setting rent limits based on the HUD AMI has led to unpredictable and sometimes 
unsustainable rates of change for tenants and owners, with increases as high as 16.3% in 2022 
and decreases as low as -7.7%. In the Seattle region, the rate of change in the HUD AMI has 
generally outpaced the Consumer Price Index (CPI), as well as annual Cost of Living Allowance 
(COLA) increases for Social Security recipients. With the presence of high-paying jobs in our 
region, this policy has had particularly significant impacts on affordable housing residents here, 
especially seniors, compared to other areas. 

Some ARCH members have already begun to take steps toward alternate rent limit policies. In 
2019, the City of Bellevue modified regulations for its Multifamily Tax Exemption (MFTE) 
program to provide for a 3.0% annual cap on the rate of tenants’ rent increases. The City of 
Kirkland is utilizing an alternative set of HUD income limits published for the Section 8 program, 
which uses a formula that historically has provided a buffer in years of extreme increases.

Celebrating 30 years of bringing cities together to house East King County  

 



 

  

 

 
 

Data from Annual Compliance Reports (ACRs) collected by ARCH for members’ incentive 
programs illustrate that ARCH renters’ incomes are not growing as fast as the HUD AMI. Based 
on 2022 data reported this year, the median annual income growth for all types of households 
was 3.7%, with the average length of residency among those households totaling 2.4 years. The 
rate of median annual income growth for households with seniors was significantly less (0%) 
than those without seniors, while the rate for households with minors was higher (6.0%) than 
those without minors. Households living in lower AMI units generally experienced slower 
growth in incomes than those in higher AMI units. Households with seniors also experienced 
greater overall cost burden, with their median rent burden amounting to 46% compared to 36% 
in non-senior households. Overall, 79% of households living in ARCH affordable housing were 
paying over 30% of their income toward rent, with 23% paying more than 50% of income 
toward rent. These figures are based on gross pay, which means net income for households 
may actually be even less than reported. 
 
  

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000
19

82

19
84

19
86

19
88

19
90

19
92

19
94

19
96

19
98

20
00

20
02

20
04

20
06

20
08

20
10

20
12

20
14

20
16

20
18

20
20

20
22

Annual Increase in HUD Area Median Income 
(King County)

% Increase  Amount ($)



 

  

Policy Development Process and Public Comment on Policy Options 
In the fall of 2022, following the 16.3% increase in rent limits in members’ affordable housing 
programs, the ARCH Executive Board directed staff to explore new policy options that could 
create a more balanced framework for regulating affordable rents in the future. The Board set 
forth the following objectives for the policy: (1) Reduce the trend toward increasing cost 
burden among renters of affordable units; (2) Provide greater predictability for tenants and 
owners; (3) Create regulations that support financial feasibility based on common underwriting 
standards among investors and lenders; (4) Minimize administrative burden for property 
managers and ARCH to oversee compliance; and (5) Avoid unintended consequences.  
 
ARCH has since conducted nearly a year of robust stakeholder and public engagement, 
following guidance from the Executive Board and consultation with member city staff. Initial 
outreach included focus groups, surveys, and interviews with a diverse set of stakeholders, 
including market rate housing developers, nonprofit and affordable housing developers, 
property management and compliance staff, tenant rights advocates, lender and investor 
representatives, and public agency staff from Washington and other states around the nation 
who have experience implementing rent limit caps in their affordable housing programs. 
Feedback was collected on a range of potential policy options based on existing models, with 
stakeholders asked to identify other proposals for consideration. 
 
Based on the first phase of input, the Board eliminated the option most preferred by tenant 
advocates (setting rents based on tenant incomes) and the option most preferred by market 
rate developers (leaving the status quo in place). The status quo option was not considered 
viable in part because many member cities have outdated federal citations that require 
correction in order for ARCH to administer the “median income” requirements predictably. The 
scope of the policy was also refined to focus first on market rate projects with a minority of 
affordable units (i.e., those participating in city incentive programs), given the distinct financial 
challenges and more complex regulations for projects with a majority of restricted units. 

Work Group Study and Narrowing of Options 
To continue development of the options, the Board directed staff to convene a workgroup with 
the goal of aligning diverse stakeholders around a preferred option and refining the proposal to 
address stakeholders’ concerns. Volunteers were identified in early 2023 and the work group 
met through June of 2023, with a final Work Group Recommendation issued on July 3, 2023. 
The Work Group initially converged around the concept of a tenant-based 3.0% cap (similar to 
the policy in place for Bellevue’s MFTE program), noting the following advantages: 

• Tenants will have relatively stable housing costs and be able to plan ahead for their 
financial future, helping to limit involuntary economic displacement.  

• The policy could help contribute to longer tenancies and reduced expenses associated 
with turnover/eviction. 

• Owners will be able to re-set rents as new tenants move in so that long-term unit rents 
still follow the HUD AMI. The policy also has the effect of allowing owners to “bank 
capacity” or spread out annual increases at a more consistent and predictable pace.  



 

  

Ultimately, the group could not come to a consensus on whether to set a fixed cap or create a 
graduated cap that could adjust based on dynamic factors that would allow properties to catch 
up faster to baseline HUD AMI-based rents. 
 
Final Options and Public Comment Period 
Based on the Work Group’s report, the Board directed staff to collect public input period on 
four final options, including: (1) Tenant-based 3.0% cap; (2) Tenant-based 5.0% cap; (3) 
Graduated cap of 3.0%-9.0%; and (4) Graduated cap of 3.0%-6.0%. ARCH initiated a public 
comment period on August 28 through September 24, inviting input through a detailed survey 
as well as through written comments. To generate greater awareness of the survey, ARCH 
attended several outreach events, created and distributed a flier to over 36 agency staff 
contacts and hosted a community meeting with approximately 30 attendees.  A total of 243 
unduplicated survey responses were submitted, along with written comments.  
 
The survey was successful in collecting input from people affected by housing affordability, with 
85% of survey respondents identifying as renters, 56% having lived in affordable housing and 
28% having lived in an ARCH unit. A total of 76% shared that they currently live in East King 
County, with average household income of $62,600 and average household size of 2.2. A total 
of 81% of respondents indicated that they or someone they know has experienced having to 
move due to a rent increase. A summary of survey respondents’ ranking of the options is shown 
below. 
 

Ranking 

Option 1: 
Tenant-
Based 3.0% 
Cap 

Option 2: 
Tenant-
Based 5.0% 
Cap 

Option 3: 
Graduated 
3.0%-9.0% 
Cap 

Option 4: 
Graduated 
3.0%-6.0% 
Cap 

First Choice 186 5 11 30 
Second Choice 18 95 14 55 
Third Choice 9 64 29 63 
Fourth Choice 14 16 107 23 
Weighted 
Results* 603 269 90 263 

*Weighting provides three points to a respondents’ first choice, two to their second choice and one to their third choice.  
 
Of those who ranked the policies, 82% preferred the tenant-based 3.0% cap as their first choice, 
with the tenant-based 5.0% cap and graduated 3.0%-6.0% cap the next most preferred choices. 
Survey responses also included a range of answers explaining why the policy was of interest to 
the respondent, and why they provided the ranking they did. Common themes included: 

• Rent increases causing displacement and loss of community supports (change of school, 
losing access to safe neighborhoods, etc.) 

• Wages not keeping up with rent increases 
• Seniors/people with fixed incomes experiencing severe impacts of rent increases 
• Increased risk of homelessness from rent increases 



 

  

• Families experiencing significant impacts (health impacts, kids having to change schools, 
parents working two jobs, etc.) 

• Concerns over fairness (increases seem egregious, profits taking precedence over 
tenants being able to stay in their housing) 

 
Few comments from property owners and developers were received during the comment 
period, but those that were received, together with earlier input, emphasized concerns about 
the impact of any policy on housing providers. Common themes included: 

• Fear of future costs outpacing allowed increases 
• Need to balance resident concerns with financial reality to provide quality housing 
• Present concerns driven by especially high increases in operational costs, particularly 

staffing and insurance, as well as generally challenging market conditions for feasibility 
of new developments 

• Need to evaluate long-term unintended consequences and ensure the policy has relief 
valves if economic circumstances change dramatically or if inflation doesn’t resemble 
past history 

 
Property and asset managers provided a unique perspective in their survey responses, with 
nearly half preferring the 3.0% cap, and the other half preferring one of the graduated caps. 
Some shared their own experience having to move due to rent increases, and some were 
particularly aware of the impact of recent increases on residents, with one noting: “I've lost 
more ARCH home residents in the last 2 years than any other annual time frame the last 21 
years in this industry… Most of my long term residents have had to move.”  
 
Recommendations 
It is clear from both the data and public input that the current policy of basing increases on the 
HUD AMI is not working well for many of the low and moderate income renters that have relied 
on ARCH to access housing in East King County. At the same time, ARCH is keenly aware of the 
need for regulations that will continue to support the development and operation of new 
housing, and limit the burden on property management staff that work with ARCH to 
implement these policies. To address these multiple interests, ARCH has developed the 
following recommendations:  
 
Recommendation #1: Adopt option of Tenant-Based 5.0% Cap or Graduated 3.0%-6.0% Cap 
The graduated cap is a promising new concept that has the potential to give tenants the benefit 
of a 3.0% cap in some years while creating a relief valve to respond to economic factors that 
also affect property owners. To simplify the administration of the policy, ARCH would 
recommend that the adjustment of the cap be established at a programmatic level based on 
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than an individual tenant-level, and that a minimum floor 
of 25% below the HUD AMI-based rents be established so that rent limits are able to respond to 
persistent higher inflationary environments.  
 



 

  

Because the graduated cap does not have an existing precedent and there is greater 
uncertainty around its application, ARCH also recommends that members establish a simpler 
tenant-based 5.0% cap, with a similar floor that creates a buffer against persistent high 
inflation. Providing a choice between these policies may also accommodate differences in 
preferences and underwriting approaches between developers.  
 
For both options, the policy should specify that tenants have the right to renew their leases so 
long as they remain in compliance with their existing lease agreement, and that owners also 
retain their typical rights to convert properties to other uses. In addition, the policy would not 
affect how income limits are determined each year, as these would continue to be set based on 
the HUD AMI.  
 
Recommendation #2: Add incentives to apply Tenant-Based 3.0% Cap to senior projects and 
offer as option to other projects 
The unique needs of seniors were a consistent theme heard throughout ARCH’s process. As 
most seniors rely on fixed sources of income, it is even more critical to establish policies that 
will ensure low, stable rent increases. To ensure that this policy does not have the unintended 
consequence of discouraging development of senior projects, ARCH recommends establishing 
the policy in exchange for an additional incentive, such as a reduction in the total number of 
required affordable units or an increase in the target income. This approach may also be 
feasible to extend to other types of projects, but on an optional rather than a mandatory basis. 
 
Recommendation #3: Coordinate implementation by aligning code language, administrative 
decision-making and data and evaluation 
Given the increased complexity these policies may add to the administration of members’ 
programs, ARCH recommends that member staff work in partnership to implement these 
recommendations through common code language and boilerplate legal provisions, and 
establish shared administrative decision-making through ARCH’s structure to ensure consistent 
interpretation and application of rent policies throughout the ARCH program. This collaboration 
is consistent with ARCH’s mission and will result in a more efficient program, especially for 
developers that work in more than one jurisdiction.  
 
In addition, ARCH recommends establishing key benchmarks for evaluation of the policy and 
sharing data across jurisdictions to measure its collective impact. Specific measures could 
include the rate of tenant cost burden; average length of tenancy; developer participation rates 
in areas with voluntary programs; and continued tracking of the HUD AMI against CPI and Social 
Security COLAs. Any potential policy adjustments based on this evaluation should be considered 
across ARCH jurisdictions to continue a cohesive approach within our coalition. 
 
Recommendation #4: Advance recommendations for subsidized projects to State housing 
agencies 
Residents of subsidized affordable projects are experiencing many of the same impacts of rent 
increases as those in market-rate projects. However, because these projects face far greater 
financial challenges to operate and maintain quality living environments, ARCH understands 



 

  

that a different policy approach may be needed and therefore recommends advancing our 
initial recommendations to State-level housing agencies that are also planning to explore new 
rent limit policies. Based on ARCH’s research and interviews into the most promising 
approaches from other states, our recommendation is to establish simple tenant-based caps 
that may vary by type of project (e.g., lower caps for senior and disabled), with approval 
processes to increase caps based on the financial performance of each individual project. In 
addition, ARCH recommends that public funders evaluate their underwriting criteria and level 
of subsidy to ensure that projects can safely accommodate lower growth in rents while meeting 
their debt obligations and providing proper staffing and maintenance. 
 
Conclusion 
While no policy is without its drawbacks, these recommendations will make our affordable 
housing programs work better for the low and moderate income households that ARCH was 
created to serve, while limiting impacts on property owners and developers whose partnership 
we rely on to continue producing the housing our region needs.   
  
 
Attachments: 

1. Rent Limit Policy Survey Summary 
2. Rent Limit Policy Email Comments 
3. ARCH Rent Policy Work Group Recommendation 
4. Summary of Stakeholder Outreach and Analysis 



ARCH Rental Limit Policy Survey Summary – Sample Comments 

Major Themes 

Income Not Keeping Up 

• I just had an increase of nearly 30% while my income was less than 5%. Increase. I tried to look 
for another affordable op�on and couldnt find any near the school I work for and I will have to 
live far away and change schools for my kids 

• I live in an Arch unit. This year my rent went up about $300. I can't afford that much increase. I'm 
s�ll making the same amount of money. I didn't get a raise from my job. 

• To the best of my knowledge rents can increase up to 10% per year, however I know no one 
who's income has increased that much annually. I have had to move twice to accommodate my 
income. This in itself is costly. I have been faced with evic�on and this is scary. 

• As a young professional, earning a fair salary, it has been increasingly harder to afford housing. 
Considering that salaries arent o�en matched with the infla�on or rent, its only fair to minimize 
the increase for tenants to prevent homelessness and provide housing security for those within 
the median income levels. 

Displacement/Loss of Community 

• I work in Bellevue and higher rent makes it difficult to live in an area rela�vely close to my 
school. It's important to me to be a part of the community where I work but when rent increases 
then people like myself are forced to live farther out l. This alienates and isolates us from the 
community we want to be a part of. 

• Without naming names, the recent ARCH pricing has pushed 3 tenants and one personal friend 
to find new housing. Yes the income limit increased, but with such a large jump in maximum 
rents, it put them out of their price range. 

• This is an ARCH building and we have already lost several long-term residents because they can 
no longer afford the rent. 

• This directly impact our family. If our rent con�nues to go up we will have to move our of the city 
we have lived in for 7 years. We love Kenmore and can't afford to buy a house here. I beleive the 
apartments we live in are the least expensive and we are close to not being able to afford our 
rent. 

• Another ARCH resident in our building on fixed income couldnt pay the increased rent and had 
to move further away from family and job. 

• I have to move away from poten�al doctors/specialists, family and friends, and good 
jobs/schools because of the rent rates. 

Impact on Seniors/People with Fixed Income 

• Those of us with limited income are more significantly impacted by infla�on than those people 
with higher incomes. The increases hit us where we have litle flexibility to adapt: rent is always 
the biggest chunk of basic living costs. Social security increases only "keep up" with infla�on, 
sort of. We need stability, which a fixed rate tracking with long tern infla�on would be about the 
best we can hope for,  but would also allow us to an�cipate the change. 



• As of October 1, 2023, I will be paying 85% of my total income, which is Social Security only. 
• It would be relief to know if the rent is 30% of our household income, with rents going up every 

year we are fearful of loosing housing. Both my husband and I are low income seniors and work 
but don't make a lot of money, we love our current ARCH subsidized apartment and want to live 
here without worry of having our rents become unaffordable. Please help reduce the increase of 
tenant based por�on. Thank you! 

• I know several seniors in their mid to late 60s living on Social Security, whose rent was increased 
to the point where their Social Security check would barely cover rent, and they were unable to 
work. I know a few of those people are living out of their cars, but are able to sustain life through 
social security, taking care of their Basic needs in terms of food and Medicare helping with any 
health issues that may arise. The real damage is to emo�onal and mental health to those of us 
that have no family remaining or very few family and friends. 

• PLEASE, considera�on in the policy should be given to those on a fixed income.  In 2023 my SSA 
increased by ~8.7%.  In 2024 I am an�cipa�ng my rent to increase by 10%, add to that the 
increasing fuel, food and essen�als costs, guessing >10%.  I also an�cipate my SSA increase to be 
<3%.  How do I make up for the increase? 

• I think that rent increases are making affordable housing extremely difficult for people on a fixed 
income. No % of increases are aimed at making sure people like me (disability) are protected 
from losing housing due to these increases when ssdi DOES NOT keep up with infla�on. 

Homelessness Risk 

• I was homeless in Bellevue. I am 75 yrs old and want to come back to the Eastside. Though I 
qualify for Sec�on 8 there are no vouchers but a fixed rent cap may make it achievable 

• Rental increases in my area are becoming alarming. It seems Redmond is atemp�ng to gentrify 
the city and push out lower income folks. The Peleton where I am living will be raising our rent 
from 1675 to 1800, which isnt that bad of an increase. However if you choose not to renew your 
lease due to not being able to afford the increase the month to month rent goes up to 12000 
and thats not a typo. I feel apartments are trying to run many of us lower income folks out to 
heavily raise rent or have the apartments torn down and built into the luxury apartments that 
arent affordable for many. 
I’m concerned this is the trend and see homelessness rising due to it. Myself included more than 
5 people in my close inner circle have faced houselessness due to these crazy rent hikes, we are 
going to cause a new houseless pandemic if we don’t address this issue soon. 

• Several people I know have to live in their cars because landlords increased their rent $500 or 
more. 

• I have been on Public housing program and have lived in subsidized housing in the past and I feel 
like unless we make changes to the housing costs more people are going to find themselves 
homeless. 

• I personally have had to move due to a large rental increase and I know several people who have 
had to do the same. I also have had clients who have become homeless due to extreme rental 
increases in western wa. It shouldn't be that people have to move over an hour away from their 
jobs, to love in "low income, unsafe" neighborhoods to stay housed. Then they risk more wear 
and tear on their cars which creates an issue of reliability on transporta�on, or they don't have 
their own cars and will spend hours on public transporta�on. 



• I will scrimp and save on all other items, but avoiding homelessness is always my #1 goal. 

Other Impacts on Family 

• I have had to move several �mes (6-7) because of rent increases. My elderly mother couldn't 
afford her rent and moved in with my spouse and me for affordability. We've even had to move 
as a unit twice because of rent hikes. We'll likely end up priced out and moving further away 
from medical care and jobs soon. 

• I was diagnosed with breast cancer and was on long term disability and my rent went up so I had 
to move to a smaller unit further away and my kids had to switch schools. This made ge�ng to 
cancer treatment hard. 

• I rent a unit under the ARCH PROGRAM, and my rent was increased by almost 40%. If this 
con�nue throughout the years, Ill be forced to move out of Bellevue, which I dont, cause my 
children atend BSD, and I want them to have a beter educa�on. Also, my oldest child is special 
needs and thats the main why I moved to the Eastside. 

• My husband is handicapped and we have low income .my rent this year increased 15% and is 
very hard to make it day by day and we don't know what we will do next year 

• Once had to move because of a 7.5% rent increase -- entailed losing two jobs for adults and a 
school placement for child 

• As a renter and a family household with a single income due to economic barriers, we are 
burdened to the increases that do not allow us to afford basic rent. We are paying near to 80% 
of our income for rent which increases while our income is stagnant. Our children are suffering 
and if we cannot increase income, then dignity, safe housing, and sustainable living is not an 
op�ons for us. 

• Despite having a good job that pays $41 an hour, my family will likely be evicted soon because 
with all of the infla�on it is becoming harder and harder to make the rent payments each month. 

• I don't currently live in affordable housing.  I currently pay $2600 in rent. I have to move when 
my lease is up in March 2024 as rent will increase to $3200.  Unfortunately, I will likely have to 
move south to Pierce county to find affordable rent. I work in downtown Seatle and my two 
adult daughters each live in King county, so this will have a huge impact on my well being. In 
addi�on to full �me work, I currently provide part �me childcare to my 2 young grandchildren so 
moving south will have a nega�ve impact. 

• It has been ge�ng increasingly difficult to live in this area, the cost of basic necessi�es such as 
food and medicine has skyrocketed im now ra�oning my epipens and rent just drama�cally 
increases to the point that whether its affordable housing or not the prices are no longer 
different. Arch used to be affordable housing but it no longer is anymore. 

Fairness 

• Property owners will do fine and their profits should not take precedence over their tenant's 
housing. 

• Currently I'm forced into a ren�ng situa�on that requires about 80% of my income because I've 
been unable to find affordable housing… The system is unfair. 

• Increases for low income renters hits harder than for high earning families. Low income tenants 
who are living paycheck to paycheck should have opportunity to grow and forcing them out of 
housing a�er 1 year is not fueling growth but gentrificaiton. 



• Reducing the amount of money people spend on housing is more important than considering 
business goals of developers. 

• My property has 12 ARCH units from 147 rentable units... a frac�on of the total rentable homes 
are helping those who can't afford the current market rates to live/work in the same area. The 
majority of homes are s�ll bringing in high market rents while opera�ng costs remain rela�vely 
the same. Expenses for owners are reduced with resident reten�on. Typically, it costs more 
money to turnover.  Vacancy costs more than occupancy. 

• They have other units at regular rate, they’ll make up the money, especially in Bellevue. 
• Owners have reaped the benefits of no cap for many years. The �me to consider the renters 

posi�on is long overdue. 
 

Ability to Live Near Work 

• I work in Issaquah and would like to be able to eventually move closer to work. However, with all 
the new developments/luxury apts, finding affordable rental units has been a challenge as a 
single renter. 

• I can barely afford to live in the city where I teach. I cannot save any money to re�re. I am living 
paycheck to paycheck. 

General Affordability Concerns 

• I literally can't afford to live. 
• As it stand now, the ARCH rents are not helpful to people who need lower rents. 
• My previous rent increased by 500 while living in an arch home. Arch became just a slogan name 

it doesn’t do / represent what it’s supposed to be/do 
• Our rent increases every year. I've lived in an ARCH apartment for two years, it's gone from 

$1600 to 2400.00! 
• I believe that ar�ficial increases designed to appease landlords will not benefit tenants at 

all.  The ques�on then is what you believe your mission is.  If it is to provide an affordable 
housing op�on to the lucky few who qualify (or maybe the unlucky few), then it's important in 
my view to s�ck to that goal, recognizing that low-income tenants are not successful in the 
economy in the way that others are and aren't likely to see substan�al increases in their 
incomes. 
  



Why do you think your first choice is the best policy? 
Op�on 1: Tenant-based 3.0% Cap 

Ability to plan and budget 

• People who are struggling to make ends meet would know exactly how much their rent could go 
up.  Planning and budge�ng is everything when you have litle. 

• Known fixed percentage would allow for budge�ng and planning. My last landlord raised my rent 
from $2400 to $4200 with 30 days no�ce and I had to quickly find a new place to live. $1800 
rental increase is not something I can easily make up by cu�ng other things out of my budget. 

• While a rent increase is a burden limi�ng it to a lower amount gives a family/individual a chance 
to maintain or make plans for an increase 

• For a tenant to be able to save any extra money each month is important for a possible future 
home buying purchase. 

Rents are already too high, keeps homes affordable 

• Rent is already too high in King County. Raising rent by 3% each year is the only reasonable 
op�on. 

• If the goal is to keep affordable units this one keeps it affordable. 
• Rent is already SO high so I chose the absolute smallest cap. 

Better alignment with senior incomes  

• It keeps up with infla�on generally, as well as my pension (almost) which is capped at 2% per 
year regardless of infla�on 

• Because that's what seniors, living on Social Security can afford.  If SS COLA raise is 2%, for 
example, then even a 3% rent raise is crea�ng a hardship.  Many years the COLA was less than 
3%, but the Medicare premium con�nues to rise. 

Better alignment with low wage worker incomes 

• Many low income tenants go from one low-paying job to another, so they do not have an 
increase in annual income to accommodate an increase in rent. 

• People who qualify for the income restric�ons generally do not have the same income increases 
as market workers since they live primarily off a fixed income. It seems unfair to raise the rent in 
accordance with market ac�vity 

• Renters qualify for these homes by making less than the average so it aligns that rates should not 
increase more than average, they should be kept as low as reasonably possible. Management 
and Owners are s�ll ge�ng annual growth from each ARCH unit. Having the ability to jump to 
current AMI rent rates between occupants is also helpful to get more in line with market. A 
frac�on of the total rentable homes are helping those who can't afford the current market rates 
to live/work in the same area. 

• In a region as affluent as King County, Area Median Income is not necessarily indica�ve of the 
annual household income increases experienced by lower-income households. We know that 
income inequality is growing as the wealthiest residents in our county are increasing their 



household income more quickly than their middle-income and low-income counterparts who are 
experiencing household income growth at a significantly slower pace or experience income 
stagna�on. Given that the target popula�on for ARCH supported housing is low-income and 
moderate-income households, the rent limit policy should be reflec�ve of their lived reality. 
Further, we know that BIPOC households have, on average, lower household incomes, slower 
increase in household income year over year, and are overrepresented in our local homelessness 
response system. By crea�ng a policy that more accurately reflects the annual increases to 
household incomes for the tenants living in ARCH supported or other affordable housing units, 
we support more sustainable affordable housing opportuni�es. O�en, as a service provider in 
East King County, I would hear feedback from scared, disappointed families that affordable 
housing really isn't all that affordable, especially a�er annual rent increases. I have known many 
families lose their affordable housing apartments because their rent increase significantly 
outpaced their household income growth. If we want to prevent homelessness, create a 
healthier and more vibrant community, then rent limits need to be capped at limits reflec�ve of 
low-income households' annual income growth. 

Op�on 2: Tenant-based 5.0% Cap 

• By capping rental increases to 5% which should allow prop owners to maintain buildings 

Op�on 3: Graduated 3.0%-9.0% Cap 

• gives a beter balance of decision to both the tenant and landlord 
• because it gives people a beter chance at ren�ng an apartment 

Op�on 4: Graduated 3.0%-6.0% Cap 

• Affordable housing should make sense for developers 
• 4 is most realis�c compromise that controls rent increases for affordable units 
• Reasonable for all par�es 



Email Comments RE: Rental Limit Policy 
(8/15/2023 – 9/24/2023) 

 
Hi. 
I filled out the survey and had planned to atend the public mee�ng.  Unfortunately, I was not able to 
be there to speak in person. 
I am currently in an ARCH apartment on 116th in Kirkland, so I have a renter’s perspec�ve, which I 
would like to elaborate on. 
The underlying issue being addressed in the background discussions and the survey appears to be the 
difficulty of being fair to both the limited-income renter and the landlord, both of whom are affected 
by infla�on.  Over �me, infla�on can take great bites out of incomes for both groups. However, it 
would seem to me that the overriding factor in equitability is the likely reserves available to the two 
groups. 
People like me, a re�ree with Social Security being a significant por�on of my sta�c annual income, 
have few financial reserves we can call on to weather the periods of greater infla�on, in par�cular 
since the official rate of infla�on EXCLUDES food and fuel, as being too vola�le to be included in the 
analysis from which the COLA is developed. That means that we have to cover the largest por�on of 
basic costs of living without it being included the incremental allotment from Social Security. 
That is not to say that the apartment owners don’t also have to swallow those increases.  The 
difference that I have to assume, since I don’t belong to that group, is that they probably have more 
resources at their disposal to stay in business un�l infla�on comes down. 
When we consider people who aren’t in my age group, who struggle to make ends meet, I would 
guess that they are even less likely to stay solvent through high infla�on periods. 
My conclusion is that the first op�on presented in the ARCH proposed alterna�ves is the most 
equitable and most in accordance with the spirit of the ARCH program. 
Thank you for including these comments into the record for considera�on in selec�ng the path ahead. 
 
 
Thank you for the ARCH email about this policy proposal.  Rather than comple�ng a survey, I would 
like to send comments.  First, I think that in order to provide truly affordable housing, rents should be 
fully capped.  There is no real way for low-income tenants to earn enough to be able to meet rent 
increases, and so in my view, any rent increase proposal is ar�ficial.  For example, my income has not 
increased from $32,000 per year for at least 7 years, this despite my changing jobs and working more 
than one job at a �me during some periods.  Rent increases are therefore not manageable for 
me.  Thus, I believe that ar�ficial increases designed to appease landlords will not benefit tenants at 
all.  The ques�on then is what you believe your mission is.  If it is to provide an affordable housing 
op�on to the lucky few who qualify (or maybe the unlucky few), then it's important in my view to s�ck 
to that goal, recognizing that low-income tenants are not successful in the economy in the way that 
others are and aren't likely to see substan�al increases in their incomes. 
Second, in order to offer truly affordable housing in keeping with the goals of your program, it is 
necessary to take the landlords on.  There is no other way to put it.  The housing market has become a 
hugely destabilizing en�ty in American society, denying millions the opportunity to save for a beter, 
more independent future.  High rents decrease social mobility; they trap people in their homes 
through high move-in and move-out costs and deprive them of hope for the future.  They force us to 
live for the rental market alone and put aside human ac�vi�es like health care and educa�on and 
providing for a family through savings, home ownership, and general planning.  Unless something is 
done to challenge the current pricing and behavior of the housing market, fewer people generally will 



have opportuni�es to own homes or conversely to live harmoniously in mul�-family housing 
communi�es. 
When I was younger, rent was maybe 10% of my income.  Thus, I could do almost anything I wanted: I 
could change jobs or travel or move if I wasn't ge�ng along with my roommates.  The housing market 
in no way had me in thrall.  I was able to concentrate on what matered in life, people and 
ac�vi�es.  Since the early 2000s, though, all of this has changed, and now the only thing I think about 
is how to pay the rent anywhere.  This is incredibly dehumanizing.   
For people who are homeless, how will regular rent increases benefit them?  It will simply ac�vate the 
cycle again.  That is, they may find housing through support services, but once the increases start 
coming, they will find themselves in the same situa�on of choosing between rent and life.   
In summary, there is no increase policy that will not exacerbate the problem of unaffordable housing, 
so I support a full cap on rent policy for those units designated affordable. 
Best regards, 
 
Just wanted to submit a postscript to my previous comments. 
a.  PLEASE, considera�on in the policy should be given to those on a fixed income.  In 2023 my SSA 
increased by ~8.7%.  In 2024 I am an�cipa�ng my rent to increase by 10%, add to that the increasing 
fuel, food and essen�als costs, guessing >10%.  I also an�cipate my SSA increase to be <3%.  How do I 
make up for the increase? 
b.  Developers receive a "tax credit" for "affordable" housing - that's a win/win for them.  As 
previously stated, they charge for garage parking, and for pets (a non-refundable deposit plus an 
increase in monthly rent).  Any developers in King County filing losses?  Curious. 
 
Thank you for your aten�on to my comments. 
 
The biggest barrier to adequate housing for me in Bellevue is not being able to qualify for ARCH 
rentals due to high student loans, poor rental history, and poor credit. I am under-employed based on 
my creden�als; I was fired due to no fault of my own. It has been very difficult for me to find work 
since ge�ng fired.  
I am currently working in a posi�on that pays an hourly rate with no benefits, no sick leave or holiday 
pay. I have over 200K in student loans plus 25k in personal loans incurred while being homeless, and I 
am behind in other debts. One cannot recover from all this; it is not possible. It is a constant rob Peter 
to Pay Paul situa�on. You tell me what are my op�ons?  
No property owner will allow me to rent their Arch rental property, and if I cannot rent an Arch 
property, where I could possibly use the saving from lower rent and begin payment plans – I am stuck 
in this vicious cycle and my debts con�nue to climb exponen�ally. It is very difficult to see a posi�ve 
future. What I need is an affordable two-bedroom home/place for me and my son close to where I 
work, and where my property owner has insurance policy that guarantees rent will be paid on �me to 
minimize their risk, so they are willing rent to me.  
Stop spending millions of taxpayer money on band aid solu�ons and outsourcing services to others 
who simply provide snack bags and sleeping bags or earn temp income by rent out hotels or motels. 
All human beings that have not become drug addicts want to have a home, a job, and be treated with 
respect.  Too much money is being spent on dead-end solu�ons.  
 
As a 70+ senior on SSA-only it is important to me and on behalf of those in my situation to have an 
input in future development* and rent** pricing, in particular, for seniors on fixed incomes. 
 



The following table shows the SSA increases by year (1975 - 2023): 
Source:  https://www.ssa.gov/oact/cola/colaseries.html 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
Prior to 1975, Social Security benefit increases were set by legisla�on. 
 
Social Security Cost-Of-Living Adjustments 

Year COLA 

1975 8.0 

1976 6.4 

1977 5.9 

1978 6.5 

1979 9.9 

1980 14.3 

1981 11.2 

1982 7.4 

1983 3.5 

1984 3.5 

1985 3.1 

1986 1.3 

1987 4.2 

1988 4.0 

1989 4.7 

1990 5.4 

1991 3.7 

1992 3.0 

1993 2.6 

1994 2.8 
 

Year COLA 

1995 2.6 

1996 2.9 

1997 2.1 

1998 1.3 

1999 a 2.5 

2000 3.5 

2001 2.6 

2002 1.4 

2003 2.1 

2004 2.7 

2005 4.1 

2006 3.3 

2007 2.3 

2008 5.8 

2009 0.0 

2010 0.0 

2011 3.6 

2012 1.7 

2013 1.5 

2014 1.7 
 

Year COLA 

2015 0.0 

2016 0.3 

2017 2.0 

2018 2.8 

2019 1.6 

2020 1.3 

2021 5.9 

2022 8.7 
 

 
a The COLA for December 1999 was originally determined as 2.4 percent based on CPIs published by 
the Bureau of Labor Sta�s�cs. Pursuant to Public Law 106-554, however, this COLA is effec�vely now 
2.5 percent. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Please note that the 8.7% increase in 2022 is for calendar year 2023. 
*Floor plans, e.g. include a medicine cabinet (seriously!), provide storage and adequate 
parking!  City streets have parking restrictions.  Tenants, staff, visitors including those for 
retail/commercial businesses are forced to park illegally or in local private business parking lots. 
**Pricing:  increases are equivalent to SSA's COLA adjustments.  This may be a separate category for 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ssa.gov%2Foact%2Fcola%2Fcolaseries.html&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7C404998f8d5204c49966d08dbbb9f2999%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638310064526729423%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=v15JyNUitNpeorUfzv4gzJDXAdEZ%2BDOsk2tI5bxHqKY%3D&reserved=0


retirees on SSA only? 
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Source: 
 htps://www.minneapolisfed.org/about-us/monetary-policy/infla�on-calculator/consumer-price-
index-1913- 
Note:  The table below is an excerpt of the complete table beginning in 1913 to show only years 
1975 - 2022.  The 4% shown in 2023 is estimated for SSA's 2024 COLA. 
The U.S. Bureau of Labor Sta�s�cs (BLS) began collec�ng family expenditure data in 1917 and 
published its first price indexes for select ci�es in 1919. In 1921, the BLS published a na�onal 
consumer price index (CPI), including es�mates of the CPI back to 1913. The data and methods 
star�ng in 1913 are considered generally compa�ble through the present day; however, the 
Minneapolis Fed maintains a separate historical table that includes es�mates prior to 1913. 
The data below use 1983 as the index (1983=100). This chart uses data from the sole measure of CPI 
available un�l 1978, a�er which it reflects the CPI for all urban consumers (CPI-U). The current year’s 
infla�on figures reflect the most recent quarterly data. 
 
SIZING UP THE LONG-TERM COST OF INFLATION 
New advances in the decades-old challenge to measure damage to society from rising prices 
You can use the Minneapolis Fed’s infla�on calculator to instantly compare the buying power of past 
and present dollars. However, you can also use the Annual Average CPI numbers below (center 
column) to make manual calcula�ons. To find out how much a price in Year 1 would be in Year 2 
dollars: 
Year 2 Price = Year 1 Price x (Year 2 CPI/Year 1 CPI) 
 

Year Annual Average CPI(-U) 
Annual Percent Change 
(rate of infla�on) 

1975 53.8 9.1% 
1976 56.9 5.7% 
1977 60.6 6.5% 
1978 65.2 7.6% 
1979 72.6 11.3% 
1980 82.4 13.5% 
1981 90.9 10.3% 
1982 96.5 6.1% 
1983 99.6 3.2% 
1984 103.9 4.3% 
1985 107.6 3.5% 
1986 109.6 1.9% 
1987 113.6 3.7% 
1988 118.3 4.1% 
1989 124.0 4.8% 
1990 130.7 5.4% 
1991 136.2 4.2% 
1992 140.3 3.0% 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.minneapolisfed.org%2Fabout-us%2Fmonetary-policy%2Finflation-calculator%2Fconsumer-price-index-1913&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7C404998f8d5204c49966d08dbbb9f2999%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638310064526729423%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aERt%2BF%2BNWy9w0yxdG4svDPtSx3VQtyIDeTfLninECtQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.minneapolisfed.org%2Fabout-us%2Fmonetary-policy%2Finflation-calculator%2Fconsumer-price-index-1913&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7C404998f8d5204c49966d08dbbb9f2999%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638310064526729423%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aERt%2BF%2BNWy9w0yxdG4svDPtSx3VQtyIDeTfLninECtQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.minneapolisfed.org%2Fabout-us%2Fmonetary-policy%2Finflation-calculator%2Fconsumer-price-index-1800-&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7C404998f8d5204c49966d08dbbb9f2999%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638310064526729423%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WLhpV5Gk8WYfzUL35aon0SUK9YEFDz88huRlzntYfec%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.minneapolisfed.org%2Farticle%2F2022%2Fsizing-up-the-long-term-cost-of-inflation&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7C404998f8d5204c49966d08dbbb9f2999%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638310064526729423%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=y%2ByGhOxeYLXv7XBhaE%2BwtkBoDleuQScqEpM4Q1ZnW9c%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.minneapolisfed.org%2Fabout-us%2Fmonetary-policy%2Finflation-calculator&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7C404998f8d5204c49966d08dbbb9f2999%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638310064526729423%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DjSF0ewpCupGweqwi%2B6JHHJsGoaYsBO5ifeV0UvwQxg%3D&reserved=0


1993 144.5 3.0% 
1994 148.2 2.6% 
1995 152.4 2.8% 
1996 156.9 2.9% 
1997 160.5 2.3% 
1998 163.0 1.6% 
1999 166.6 2.2% 
2000 172.2 3.4% 
2001 177.1 2.8% 
2002 179.9 1.6% 
2003 184.0 2.3% 
2004 188.9 2.7% 
2005 195.3 3.4% 
2006 201.6 3.2% 
2007 207.3 2.9% 
2008 215.3 3.8% 
2009 214.5 -0.4% 
2010 218.1 1.6% 
2011 224.9 3.2% 
2012 229.6 2.1% 
 2013 233.0 1.5% 
 2014 236.7 1.6% 
 2015 237.0 0.1% 
 2016 240.0 1.3% 
 2017 245.1 2.1% 
 2018 251.1 2.4% 
 2019 255.7 1.8% 
 2020 258.8 1.2% 
 2021 271.0 4.7% 
 2022 292.7 8.0% 
 2023* 304.3 4.0% 
   
*An es�mate for 2023 is based on the change in the CPI from second quarter 2022 to second quarter 
2023. 
How about rents for people with NO Criminal Record and Grear Credit that make  
Between 20-25 an hour and not a box 300sq � is absurd for anyone to live in.  
Some of us have great credit but none of that is ever taking in for account these “ housing” solu�ons 
are again absurd and only help the rich and city officials  
 
Arch, 
We should not be suppor�ng any landlords unless they are following ethical prac�ces. Allied has this 
policy which is required by King County DCHS and the Wa Dept. of Commerce in their writen 
communica�on with them to Imagine Housing who has contracted with Allied Property management. 



Property owners like Imagine who don’t follow this prac�ce and require it in their contract with 
Allied.  ARCH should not be suppor�ng Property owners who approach ARCH for funds to build 
affordable housing but have no idea how to manage it for the largest profit without raising rents or at 
least fair rents when the property has no one rent burdened over 40%.  
Landlords should not have the support/recommenda�ons from ARCH to raise rents unless they have 
managed their proper�es properly. 
 
It is difficult to respond to these policy op�ons in light of the current reality of opera�ng affordable 
housing.  We had a mee�ng with WSHFC to talk about policy changes to the 4% program.  It included 
Inland, GMD, Devco and Vintage.  All of us are the largest owners/producers of LIHTC housing in the 
state.  All are experiencing the same opera�onal issues and from my conversa�ons with nonprofits 
and market rate owners it is not unique to us.  We are all struggling to operate these proper�es in the 
black because of high opera�ng expenses.  Specifically staff costs, insurance, security and u�lity 
expenses coupled with a con�nued 25%+ delinquency rate.  The security costs alone have eaten up 
most of the NOI and rising insurance costs is the next big issue to deal with if you can even find a 
carrier willing to underwrite the property.  Pu�ng a cap on rents at this �me could be detrimental to 
the ability to con�nue opera�ng these proper�es.  We are also inves�ng hundreds of thousands of 
dollars into security upgrades at the proper�es to deal with the overwhelming behavior issues of 
tenants.  This might allow us to cut back on the costly monthly security costs, but at this point I’m 
doub�ul.   
All that being said I don’t support a rent limit policy at this �me and I don’t feel it is appropriate to 
implement anything in the near term un�l the industry can get these proper�es stabilized. 
 
Don’t increase rents. 
Over the next few years housing and rents will decrease. Already in this area, downward pressure on 
real estate values and rent is beginning. (Check out San Francisco, another IT hub of the US.) 
Seatle area popula�on has slowed the past two years. The first quarter of 2023 popula�on actually 
declined for the first �me in decades. Other Pacific-coast ci�es with similar home affordability 
challenges are experiencing declines. Many predict that Seatle is in that same target zone. Housing 
since 2022 in Seatle is experiencing downward pressure. 
htps://www.seatlemet.com/home-and-real-estate/2022/09/seatle-real-estate-housing-market-
crash-2022 
htps://www.seatle�mes.com/business/real-estate/seatle-home-prices-will-likely-fall-in-2023-that-
wont-help-buyers/ 
More large apartment rental construc�on projects are coming online, in East County specifically. 
Increasing rental units in an area of popula�on decline will result in lower rental prices. In 2022 King 
County awarded 23M and 24.67M in 2023 for affordable housing. The Biden administra�on is 
considering changing zoning laws to allow mul�-dwelling units in residen�al areas. The links below do 
not include mul�-unit housing construc�on by large developers currently underway. 
htps://www.bizjournals.com/seatle/news/2022/01/25/king-county-gives-23m-affordable-
housing.html 
htps://kingcounty.gov/elected/execu�ve/constan�ne/news/release/2023/February/02-hfp-
awards.aspx 
htps://seatlemedium.com/constan�ne-announces-23-4-million-in-affordable-housing-funding/ 
htps://www.housingfinance.com/developments/twg-enters-seatle-market-with-two-new-affordable-
housing-projects_o 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.seattlemet.com%2Fhome-and-real-estate%2F2022%2F09%2Fseattle-real-estate-housing-market-crash-2022&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FqIwD7TDP5xYfjt1Wvy3YRyNE%2BGXtVIqTzlQYqQlGSs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.seattlemet.com%2Fhome-and-real-estate%2F2022%2F09%2Fseattle-real-estate-housing-market-crash-2022&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FqIwD7TDP5xYfjt1Wvy3YRyNE%2BGXtVIqTzlQYqQlGSs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.seattletimes.com%2Fbusiness%2Freal-estate%2Fseattle-home-prices-will-likely-fall-in-2023-that-wont-help-buyers%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YFe45MF3StqfW6ab0SpK8kcR8LQBRNKbeBoZW6Ve1hg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.seattletimes.com%2Fbusiness%2Freal-estate%2Fseattle-home-prices-will-likely-fall-in-2023-that-wont-help-buyers%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YFe45MF3StqfW6ab0SpK8kcR8LQBRNKbeBoZW6Ve1hg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bizjournals.com%2Fseattle%2Fnews%2F2022%2F01%2F25%2Fking-county-gives-23m-affordable-housing.html&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=85USojFYh687N0F%2Fsrjux8FhzO2%2BeSDzXNHTFeZzvgY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bizjournals.com%2Fseattle%2Fnews%2F2022%2F01%2F25%2Fking-county-gives-23m-affordable-housing.html&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=85USojFYh687N0F%2Fsrjux8FhzO2%2BeSDzXNHTFeZzvgY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fkingcounty.gov%2Felected%2Fexecutive%2Fconstantine%2Fnews%2Frelease%2F2023%2FFebruary%2F02-hfp-awards.aspx&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=x%2F2PL6KT2dX%2F1bqUzIJPyWuyvDXCBmk2Wjy85fQdSRE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fkingcounty.gov%2Felected%2Fexecutive%2Fconstantine%2Fnews%2Frelease%2F2023%2FFebruary%2F02-hfp-awards.aspx&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=x%2F2PL6KT2dX%2F1bqUzIJPyWuyvDXCBmk2Wjy85fQdSRE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fseattlemedium.com%2Fconstantine-announces-23-4-million-in-affordable-housing-funding%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=q5DzKXYPj6%2BwPZHBdnW%2FKbLuGWr9%2FWCkp6gEt3sITRc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.housingfinance.com%2Fdevelopments%2Ftwg-enters-seattle-market-with-two-new-affordable-housing-projects_o&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lLvY1z6xxk3BEBgiOETuM1y%2B7t3Gup6zfOIpHDM3teo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.housingfinance.com%2Fdevelopments%2Ftwg-enters-seattle-market-with-two-new-affordable-housing-projects_o&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076684961%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lLvY1z6xxk3BEBgiOETuM1y%2B7t3Gup6zfOIpHDM3teo%3D&reserved=0


htps://www.kirklandreporter.com/news/county-waste-management-property-purchased-in-bellevue-
to-become-eastside-suppor�ve-and-affordable-housing/ 
htps://patch.com/washington/kirkland/king-county-awards-23-4m-7-affordable-housing-projects 
Home affordability, is historically at one of its worst levels. Raising interest rates put a damper on 
home sales. 
htps://markets.businessinsider.com/news/commodi�es/housing-market-outlook-recession-home-
prices-mortgage-rates-fannie-mae-2023-8?op=1 
htps://finance.yahoo.com/news/housing-market-2023-housing-market-165845759.html 
Home inventory remains low even though the cost to build a house has declined since pandemic 
highs.  
htps://tradingeconomics.com/commodity/lumber 
Low home inventory seems to exist even while home foreclosures jumped 22% in 1st quarter of 2023. 
This is an increase of foreclosures tor 23 consecu�ve months. Where are those houses? Seems that 
the banks and investors are holding onto them. Perhaps to prop up weak-kneed balance sheets? 
htps://markets.businessinsider.com/news/commodi�es/housing-market-outlook-recession-home-
prices-mortgage-rates-fannie-mae-2023-8?op=1 
htps://finance.yahoo.com/news/housing-market-2023-housing-market-165845759.html 
htps://www.nbcnews.com/business/consumer/foreclosures-car-repos-rising-why-americans-are-
living-financial-cliff-rcna80638 
htps://www.forbes.com/advisor/inves�ng/fomc-mee�ng-federal-reserve/ 
Zillow quickly dumped their por�olio of investment homes because they saw the market declining. 
They took a quick loss rather than wait and experience a greater loss. They also predict inventory to 
rebound in 2024. 
htps://www.ocregister.com/2021/11/01/zillow-to-sell-7000-homes-for-2-8-billion-a�er-flipping-flop/ 
htps://www.fool.com/real-estate/2022/04/03/zillow-says-housing-inventory-wont-return-to-pre-p/ 
Experts predict that more layoffs will occur in 2023.  Even the Fed is predic�ng this and some�mes 
seems to want it. Chairman Powell stated that homes are overvalued and the Fed intends to increase 
interest rates again in the future. This will result in more foreclosures. 
htps://www.governing.com/work/seatles-tech-sheds-5-900-jobs-one-of-states-largest-declines 
htps://www.computerworld.com/ar�cle/3685936/tech-layoffs-in-2023-a-�meline.html 
These are just a few reasons why you should  not raise your prices. None of the seniors in your 
facili�es is experiencing an offse�ng raise in their fixed incomes that covers food, energy, 
automo�ve/travel or other expense increases. You will just be heaping more stress on people who are 
least able to absorb the impacts. 
htps://blog.ssa.gov/social-security-benefits-increase-in-2023/ 
Put this agenda on hold for 1 to 2 years and see if the economy has improved or declined. If it has 
improved, then raise your price. My guess is that expert predic�ons of further economic decline, will 
be right. But if you feel the need to rush before the decline occurs, then you are taking advantage of a 
bubble just to cash in. 
Kind Regards, 
 

 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.kirklandreporter.com%2Fnews%2Fcounty-waste-management-property-purchased-in-bellevue-to-become-eastside-supportive-and-affordable-housing%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TmJmuDxlwH2UbxV18Ua0VkCyNIDcPDgkO2SIDUI6hJM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.kirklandreporter.com%2Fnews%2Fcounty-waste-management-property-purchased-in-bellevue-to-become-eastside-supportive-and-affordable-housing%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TmJmuDxlwH2UbxV18Ua0VkCyNIDcPDgkO2SIDUI6hJM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fpatch.com%2Fwashington%2Fkirkland%2Fking-county-awards-23-4m-7-affordable-housing-projects&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zYTvsRe5vu3OV9gKJJetHd%2FRM1Em2P8pK8khvUnaYMI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmarkets.businessinsider.com%2Fnews%2Fcommodities%2Fhousing-market-outlook-recession-home-prices-mortgage-rates-fannie-mae-2023-8%3Fop%3D1&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9oLNhPzJ2yM38qphFyowtzUZ%2BFbKKpx8UMs8JSFcsMI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmarkets.businessinsider.com%2Fnews%2Fcommodities%2Fhousing-market-outlook-recession-home-prices-mortgage-rates-fannie-mae-2023-8%3Fop%3D1&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9oLNhPzJ2yM38qphFyowtzUZ%2BFbKKpx8UMs8JSFcsMI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffinance.yahoo.com%2Fnews%2Fhousing-market-2023-housing-market-165845759.html&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sj7ZVOMQQ6GoeUK20FkrxStAHCOfiTIQIGjnYrSedKs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftradingeconomics.com%2Fcommodity%2Flumber&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VX6WCBU7fy1FM3Vwsu3CUBg1xdjjwbn5jlnoNUXo5pU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmarkets.businessinsider.com%2Fnews%2Fcommodities%2Fhousing-market-outlook-recession-home-prices-mortgage-rates-fannie-mae-2023-8%3Fop%3D1&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9oLNhPzJ2yM38qphFyowtzUZ%2BFbKKpx8UMs8JSFcsMI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmarkets.businessinsider.com%2Fnews%2Fcommodities%2Fhousing-market-outlook-recession-home-prices-mortgage-rates-fannie-mae-2023-8%3Fop%3D1&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9oLNhPzJ2yM38qphFyowtzUZ%2BFbKKpx8UMs8JSFcsMI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffinance.yahoo.com%2Fnews%2Fhousing-market-2023-housing-market-165845759.html&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sj7ZVOMQQ6GoeUK20FkrxStAHCOfiTIQIGjnYrSedKs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nbcnews.com%2Fbusiness%2Fconsumer%2Fforeclosures-car-repos-rising-why-americans-are-living-financial-cliff-rcna80638&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OJU7Yyqydshnwy4nYu2j4ITwbBaC%2FTDRmfE90n%2F7dGo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nbcnews.com%2Fbusiness%2Fconsumer%2Fforeclosures-car-repos-rising-why-americans-are-living-financial-cliff-rcna80638&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OJU7Yyqydshnwy4nYu2j4ITwbBaC%2FTDRmfE90n%2F7dGo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.forbes.com%2Fadvisor%2Finvesting%2Ffomc-meeting-federal-reserve%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sutDHnFL9SZqT4UIaoovV9LaDvCvype1nzooKw6bWzk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ocregister.com%2F2021%2F11%2F01%2Fzillow-to-sell-7000-homes-for-2-8-billion-after-flipping-flop%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VLjEPKKDuU51EZtGZe8uhg174A8esJYpmNBesUytJNc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fool.com%2Freal-estate%2F2022%2F04%2F03%2Fzillow-says-housing-inventory-wont-return-to-pre-p%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xsVcRYqmcQVQmsSsUtKFRpmd2wEuQKYp3lUa4HlNsQI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.governing.com%2Fwork%2Fseattles-tech-sheds-5-900-jobs-one-of-states-largest-declines&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gFoCR%2FOZUQ9O6sPOmhGKgW1NdwgzAxxNYWP9lQQ%2BIFI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.computerworld.com%2Farticle%2F3685936%2Ftech-layoffs-in-2023-a-timeline.html&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=jTdkqlM7tGKFdpLkRVm5bqXXJsEh5r%2Bc1X15M1ipmtA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fblog.ssa.gov%2Fsocial-security-benefits-increase-in-2023%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cnpalczewsk%40bellevuewa.gov%7Cad167ecb8e8949e5f5e508dba5941143%7C222d2edd825545bd859752141b82f713%7C0%7C0%7C638285829076841496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AbcOuJ9YkUhUmQV%2B%2Bvfa1bWYuI2z1Ql0N%2BwTUaPccSc%3D&reserved=0


  
 

 

BEAUX ARTS VILLAGE ♦ BELLEVUE ♦ BOTHELL ♦ CLYDE HILL ♦ HUNTS POINT ♦ 
ISSAQUAH ♦ KENMORE ♦ KIRKLAND ♦ MEDINA ♦ MERCER ISLAND ♦ NEWCASTLE ♦ REDMOND ♦ 

SAMMAMISH ♦ WOODINVILLE ♦ YARROW POINT ♦ KING COUNTY 

A Regional Coalition for Housing 
 

Together Center Campus 
16307 NE 83rd St, Suite 201 

Redmond, WA 98052 
(425) 861-3677 

ARCH MEMBERS 

 
MEMORANDUM 

To:  ARCH Executive Board 

From:  Rent Policy Work Group 

Date:  July 3, 2023 

Subject:  Rent Policy Recommendation for Local Affordable Housing Programs 

Background 

In February of 2023, A Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) formed a volunteer working group 
to assist with developing a rent policy recommendation for local affordable housing programs. 
ARCH has supported member jurisdictions in East King County with the design and 
administration of these programs for many years, including programs that provide land use or 
tax incentives to market rate developments that set aside affordable units, as well as a Trust 
Fund program that invests funding in affordable developments. Under most program 
regulations, affordable rents are set each year based on the rate of change in the Area Median 
Income or “AMI”, which is published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD).  

This policy process was initiated by the ARCH Executive Board in July of 2022, following a 16.3% 
increase in the HUD AMI for the Seattle region that led to significant rent increases within 
members’ affordable housing programs. The Board directed staff to conduct a robust 
stakeholder process, and established the following objectives for the policy: 

• Reduce the trend toward increasing cost burden among renters of affordable units 
• Provide greater predictability for tenants and owners 
• Create regulations that support financial feasibility based on common underwriting 

standards among investors and lenders 
• Minimize administrative burden for property managers and ARCH to oversee 

compliance 
• Avoid unintended consequences 

 
A wide range of stakeholder outreach was conducted in the fall of 2022, including focus groups 
with developers, property managers, nonprofits and tenant advocates. The work group was 
then formed with the purpose of aligning diverse stakeholders around a preferred ARCH 
recommendation and refining the proposal to address stakeholders’ concerns. 

Celebrating 30 years of bringing cities together to house East King County  



 

2 
 

Options Considered by Work Group 

The following policy options were discussed by the work group, along with comments collected 
on each option through prior outreach. These options were presented by ARCH staff and 
initially identified through researching models used in other affordable housing programs. 
Stakeholders were also invited to generate other options, or discuss variations on these 
options. 

1) HUD Section 8 Limits. Adjust rents based on changes in income limits for the HUD Section 8 
program, or the Multifamily Tax Subsidy Program (MTSP) limits. 

2) Tenant-Based 3.0% Cap. Limit individual tenant’s rent increases to 3.0%, but allow unit 
rents to re-set to maximums based on the HUD medium income at turnover. This policy was 
adopted for Bellevue’s MFTE program in 2021. (See Attachment B, Example Code Language.) 

3) Program-Based 4.5% Cap. Adjust all program rent limits annually up to a cap of 4.5%. This 
policy was adopted for Seattle’s MFTE Program 6 in 2019. 

4) Other Program Floor/Cap. Program rent limits could be adjusted based on combining other 
floors or caps, such as a 2% floor or 5% cap, provided that limits would not exceed those 
based on the HUD median income.  

Options that were not available for consideration by the stakeholders, as they were discussed 
in other settings and rejected, included maintaining the status quo, setting rents based on 30% 
of actual tenant income, and establishing an approval process for rent increases based on 
annual evaluation of properties’ financial information against established criteria. The latter 
option has shown promise in other states, but would require significantly more administrative 
capacity to implement at the local level. The first two options were discussed by the ARCH 
Board after the first phase of feedback from stakeholders and determined to fall short of the 
established objectives for the policy, so these were not presented to the work group for 
consideration.  Some work group members still expressed a preference for these two options, 
as described in Attachment C.  

 

Initial Recommendation: Tenant-Based Cap 

Among the options 1-4 above, a majority of the work group indicated the Tenant-Based 3.0% 
Cap as the preferred policy for balancing the needs of tenants and owners and creating greater 
overall stability and predictability within local affordable housing programs. However, while 
some members supported setting the cap at 3.0% cap based on alignment with Bellevue’s 
MFTE program, as well as historic averages in CPI and AMI growth, there was no consensus on 
3.0% being the right percentage cap. Further discussion of alternatives to 3.0% is described 
below. 

 



 

3 
 

Overall advantages of a tenant-based cap include: 

• Tenants will have relatively stable housing costs and be able to plan ahead for their 
financial future, helping to limit involuntary economic displacement. This is especially 
true with a fixed cap, but even a graduated cap could increase stability, if the range of 
potential increases was limited. 

• The policy could help contribute to longer tenancies and reduced expenses associated 
with turnover/eviction. 

• Owners will be able to re-set rents as new tenants move in so that long-term unit rents 
still follow the HUD AMI. In addition, the policy has the effect of allowing owners to 
“bank capacity” or spread out annual increases/decreases at a more consistent and 
predictable pace. An example is shown below to illustrate this concept. 

 

If the cap was set at 3.0%, it would have the benefit of aligning with regulations that have been 
adopted in some East King County cities that require longer notice periods for rent increases 
above 3.0%.  Because increases would never exceed 3.0%, no extraordinary notice 
requirements would apply, but both tenants and owners could still plan far in advance of future 
increases.  

It is important to balance the advantages with the disadvantages.  The developers in the work 
group expressed concern that, while a 3.0% cap was set on the Bellevue MFTE program renewal 
in 2021, the 3.0% cap was based on a historic trend in the HUD AMI increases over the last 20 
years, and there is risk that the low inflationary environment of the last 20 years may not 
persist in future years.  If current high inflationary trends continue, the result may be that 
banked capacity cannot be utilized during the term of tenancy.  Operating expenses, including 
in particular property taxes and insurance, could grow at a faster rate than capped affordable 
unit rent increases, creating a significant financial risk for the building owner over time.  
Accordingly, a 3.0% cap may not be a high enough cap in the future, particularly for programs 
such as on-site incentive zoning or inclusionary zoning covenants with significantly longer 
program time horizons than the 8 or 12-year term of MFTE programs. 

 

% HUD 
AMI 
change

% Adjusted 
AMI 
change

HUD 80% 
1BR rent

Adjusted 
Rent

Year 0 2,154$    2,154$  
Year 1 7.7% 3.0% 2,320$    2,219$  
Year 2 4.8% 3.0% 2,432$    2,285$  
Year 3 0.3% 3.0% 2,440$    2,354$  
Year 4 -3.0% 0.6% 2,368$    2,368$  
Year 5 1.4% 1.4% 2,400$    2,400$  
Year 6 6.7% 3.0% 2,560$    2,472$  

In year 1 and 2, the HUD AMI change 
is greater than 3%, creating a bank of 
capacity that the property can apply  
to its rent increases in years 3 to 5, 
when the HUD AMI change is less 
than 3%.  



 

4 
 

Graduated Cap and Other Alternatives to 3.0% Cap 

Accordingly, developers in the work group presented a solution that could address these 
concerns, with a “graduated cap” proposal.  This cap would move between 3% and 9% per year, 
based on the difference between a resident’s current rent and the then-current AMI-adjusted 
rent at lease renewal.  This would provide the flexibility needed to respond to potential longer 
term shifts in inflationary trends: 

Rent increase Limits:   

Difference between resident’s 
current rent and applicable current 
HUD AMI-based program rent  

Renewal rent may be Increased a 
maximum of: 

Less than 5% 3% 
Greater than 5% 4% 
Greater than 10% 5% 
Greater than 15% 6% 
Greater than 20% 7% 
Greater than 25% 8% 
Greater than 30% 9% 
Greater than 35% The greater of a) 9% or b) an 

increase to a new rent equal to 35% 
below current HUD AMI-based 
program rent 

 

Some work group members found this to be a creative and promising concept that allowed the 
cap to respond to a dynamic environment, but other comments and concerns were also 
expressed, including: 

• The wide range of increases up to 9% does not create enough stability for renters. 
• The proposal loses the benefit of predictability for tenants to plan for increases. 
• The multiple tiers are complicated and likely be difficult to explain to tenants. Use of 

terms like “HUD AMI-Based Program Rent” will also be a confusing term to explain. 
• The complexity of the policy will create increased workload for property managers and 

compliance staff. 
• With staff turnover on the property management side, compliance could be challenging 

since it requires greater record-keeping and referring back to prior years’ records.  
• Tying increases to AMI does mitigate longer-term concerns about operating costs, 

however AMI is not necessarily always linked with operating costs.  
o Note: increases in AMI have historically outpaced CPI in the Seattle region. 



 

5 
 

To further explore potential areas of consensus, ARCH staff collected comments from the work 
group on potential variations of the graduated cap, however no one specific policy emerged as 
the top preference for the entire group. A summary of these options and comments provided is 
shown below: 

Alternative Proposal Comments 

Apply the simple 3% cap, but add the 
minimum floor that rises with HUD AMI (e.g., 
cap may never be less than 35% below HUD 
AMI rent). 

Some preference for this proposal, but not 
unanimous. Developers expressed concerns it does 
not do enough to mitigate high inflation. 

Apply a simple cap of 4% or 5%.  Some preference for this proposal, but not 
unanimous. Similar to the 3% cap, it is easier for 
mangers to implement and for residents to 
understand, but less risk of not keeping up with 
inflation.  

Policy could be amended to allow owners to request 
higher increases up to 8% or 9% if certain financial 
conditions are met, demonstrating that the property 
is performing poorly and at risk (ex: prior year 
operating deficits, primary DSCR below 1.05 or 1.10, 
etc.). If these were objective measures with a high 
bar for poor performance, staff impacts would be 
limited. 

Even with higher cap, may still not be enough to 
mitigate high inflation. 

Apply a graduated cap with fewer tiers – for 
example, a 3%, 4% and 5% tier. 

Some preference for this proposal, but not a first 
preference for anyone.  

Could have support of developers if the tiers go up to 
6%, and the “floor” ensures the cap is no less than 
15% of HUD AMI rent (rather than 35% in the original 
proposal) 

Similar to above, policy could be amended to allow 
owners to request higher increases if certain financial 
conditions are met. 

Clarify the soft cap so it is forward looking to 
the following year’s rent increase (i.e., 
maximum increase for following year is based 
on the difference between the tenant’s rent 
and HUD rent in the current year). This gives 
tenants more time to plan.  

No significant support for this – concern that it would 
be more difficult for property management to 
manage/implement and for residents to understand. 



 

6 
 

The work group is supportive of developing better affordable housing strategies through 
incentives which align all parties’ interests.  Given that our region is in a housing crisis and 
additional development is required to address housing needs at all levels of income spectrum, it 
is prudent to document the financial risk associated with any proposed policy.  A well-calibrated 
program should not disincentivize new development and/or participation in the program, 
whether it is an optional incentive or a requirement of development.  To minimize unintended 
consequences, developers suggested that jurisdictions considering implementation should work 
with local developers to ensure that any impacted program is appropriately calibrated to the 
unique development conditions of that locality.  This may include increases in AMI levels or 
other modifications, similar to how Bellevue recently updated its MFTE policy, in order to 
achieve housing production and/or affordability targets. Other work group members expressed 
that any further policy development should also make sure to capture the voices and interests 
of renters. 

Applicability 

Work group members discussed that the scope of its recommendation should initially apply 
only to affordable units produced through local incentive programs, where affordable units are 
a minority of the total units in a given project and covenants are typically only required to 
satisfy local rules and regulations, as compared with projects that are 100% affordable and 
often subject to multiple federal, state and local financing regulations. For publicly financed 
projects, the work group supported ARCH deferring any a recommendation until such time as a 
coordinated policy proposal can be advanced among the relevant public agencies. If a higher 
cap was proposed for those projects, some work group members expressed that the number be 
applied to incentive projects as well. 

In addition, this policy would not apply to existing projects with already executed covenants, or 
projects already under development and with submitted MFTE, land use or building permit 
applications, unless those projects elected to opt in.  This policy will not apply until individual 
jurisdictions proceed with appropriate code updates to facilitate implementation. 

Additional Policy Recommendations 

Work group members acknowledge that no policy option could perfectly address the interests 
of all stakeholders, but some refinements can be made to ensure a more successful outcome. 
Specifically, the work group recommends the following: 

• ARCH should create clear and accessible guidelines and compliance tools for property 
managers, and consider a naming convention to distinguish properties subject to the 
revised policy (for example, Program 2) 

• The policy should be expanded to ensure that tenants have the right to renew their 
lease so long as they remain in compliance with their existing lease agreement. Cities 



 

7 
 

should include this in their affordable housing covenants, but make sure that owners 
retain their typical rights to convert properties to other uses. 

• ARCH should establish appropriate regulations for annual tenant requalification. 
• After three (3) years of the policy being in effect, ARCH should conduct an evaluation to 

identify any unintended consequences or potential improvements that need to be 
made. The evaluation should seek to understand: 

o Whether the policy has in fact helped promote greater housing stability among 
affordable housing tenants 

o Any increased administrative burden of overseeing compliance (for both 
properties and ARCH cities) 

o Whether properties have been able to operate with sufficient income to keep up 
with the growth in property expenses 

o A comparison of trends in key benchmarks, including the HUD AMI, Consumer 
Price Index and Social Security COLAs. 

o Participation rates in areas with voluntary programs 
o A holistic policy review at the jurisdictional level in each jurisdiction to evaluate 

potential incentives or code changes that could be made to encourage new 
development in areas with mandatory program and/or increased participation in 
voluntary programs.  Jurisdictions implementing the cap should have a sunset 
date for the policy so that there is an action forcing mechanism to evaluate its 
success and impact on the pipeline of housing production. 

If this evaluation demonstrates any unintended consequences, ARCH should 
recommend a coordinated update to the policy across its member jurisdictions. Any 
recommended change or update would not affect projects with executed covenants. 

In addition to the areas of consensus reflected in the above recommendation, some members 
of the work group expressed additional comments that did not generate a clear consensus or 
were beyond the scope of the work group’s purpose.  These additional comments are shown in 
Attachment C to help capture the nature of the discussion. 

Given the variety of comments and potential concerns, the workgroup recommends that the 
range of proposals generated by the work group, including a simple tenant based cap as well as 
alternative graduated caps, be considered with a larger variety of stakeholders. 

 

Conclusion 

Producing, operating and maintaining safe, quality housing that is affordable to people of 
different incomes is a shared goal of all members of this work group. The work group thanks 
the ARCH Executive Board for the opportunity to share risks and opportunities associated with 
this policy and strike the right balance between the needs of many housing stakeholders. 



 

8 
 

 

Attachments 

A. Rent Policy Work Group Members 
B. Example Code Language 
C. Additional Discussion / Comments Not Included in Recommendation  



 

9 
 

Attachment A 

Rent Policy Work Group Members 

 

Name Organization/Company 
Eric Amado Thrive Communities 
Nathaniel Aquino Housing Justice Project 
Andrew Calkins King County Housing Authority 
Amy Cubbage Imagine Housing 
Angel DeAsis Greystar 
McKenzie Darr Grand Peaks 
Amy Kangas Housing Justice Project 
Brad Machat Quarterra 
Brandon Morgan Vulcan Real Estate 
Kyle Pierce King County Housing Authority 
Tram Tran-Larson Housing Justice Project 
Steve Yoon Mill Creek Residential Trust 

 

  



 

10 
 

Attachment B 

Example Code Language 

 

BCC 4.52.095 Rent Stabilization 

For the duration of any exemption authorized under this chapter, any rent increase for any 
existing tenant remaining in the same affordable unit, or in a similar type of affordable unit 
(e.g., very small dwelling unit, studio, one-bedroom, two-bedroom, etc.) within the same 
project, shall not exceed three percent in any given year as described herein: 

A. When the King County median income increases by more than three percent in a 
given year, the project shall be permitted to increase affordable rents up to three 
percent that year. 

B. When King County median incomes increase by three percent or less in a given year, 
the project shall be permitted to increase affordable rents by (1) the amount of the 
corresponding increase in median income; or (2) three percent, to allow the project’s 
affordable rents to begin to catch up with King County median income calculations 
after having been capped due to conditions set forth in subsection A of this section. 
Under no circumstance may affordable rents exceed the current King County median 
income calculation. 

The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to new tenants that move into affordable 
units, or existing tenants who move into a different type of affordable unit. In such an event, 
the rent and income qualifications shall be calculated based on the current, applicable King 
County median income at the time a lease agreement is executed. (Ord. 6582 § 14, 2021.) 

 



 

11 
 

Attachment C 

Additional Discussion / Comments Not Included in Recommendation 

The following table includes additional comments from work group members that go beyond 
the scope of the group’s recommendation. These are intended to help capture the broader 
discussion. 

Topic Comment 
Eviction protections One work group member offered that broader eviction 

protections be considered. For example, landlords in 
properties financed with Low Income Housing Tax Credits 
(LIHTC) may evict tenants and refuse to renew their lease at 
the end of the lease term only for good cause. 
 

Additional development 
incentives 

One work group member suggested that cities should 
consider offering additional development incentives when 
requiring this new policy to help alleviate any concerns over 
potential costs. 
 

Emergency declarations One work group member expressed that any policy could 
become problematic if there is a future emergency 
declaration or other circumstance that leads to another 
moratorium on rent increases, such as the one established 
during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

Notice of rent increases While the current policy aligns with existing local notice 
requirements, some work group members expressed 
concern about future regulations of rent increase notices, 
expressing for example that a blanket 180 day notice 
requirement could be problematic when paired with the 
variable timing of HUD data releases. 
 

Adjustment of 3.0% in 
executed covenants 

Work group members discussed the idea of adjusting the 
cap in an existing property based on future economic 
trends, such as if long-term inflation trends were to 
continue. However, work group members did not achieve a 
consensus on what the adjustment would be based on or 
how it would be implemented, given the significant diversity 
in properties’ financing and operations. Others expressed 
that certainty at the outset of the agreement would be the 
most important consideration, and a fixed rate would be 
easier to explain to project investors and underwriters. 
 



 

12 
 

Preference for options 
not considered.  

Stakeholders wished to note a preference for options that 
were removed from consideration by the ARCH Board. 
Specifically, private developers in the work group indicated 
that maintaining the status quo would be preferrable to 
making any changes. In addition, during meetings with 
tenant stakeholders there was a unanimous preference for 
setting rents based on actual tenant incomes. 

 



Summary of Stakeholder Outreach and Analysis  
(Fall 2022 through Summer 2023) 

 
• Contacted all market rate property owners, developers and managers with 

completed or active projects in development 
o Shared background paper with initial policy options 
o Held two meetings to present options and host small group discussions 
o Issued a survey to collect written feedback.  

• Held meetings with initial contacts in the lending and investing communities 
• Presented to the Eastside Affordable Housing Coalition (EAHC) 
• Conducted outreach to other public/regulatory agencies 

o Held discussion with King County public funders group 
o Conducted interviews with staff from other state agencies with experience in 

rent increase policies 
 Discussed rent increase notice periods with Texas 
 Discussed senior and family rent cap policies with Missouri 
 Discussed rent increase process with North Carolina  

o Discussed with the Washington State Housing Finance Commission, which is 
also considering this policy issue and researching other states’ policies  

• Met with Imagine Housing staff 
• Facilitated a discussion with stakeholders representing tenant perspectives 
• Contacted all affordable housing developers, owners and service providers who 

have historically utilized the ARCH Trust Fund program 
o Facilitated a meeting to discuss operational issues and gather feedback on 

options 
o Issued a survey to collect written feedback  

• Facilitated an additional policy discussion with property management stakeholders 
to get focused feedback on the administrative implications of various options 

• Initiated outreach to assemble volunteers for a smaller stakeholder working group, 
which will include a variety of stakeholders. 

• Conducted research into other benchmarks to compare to changes in HUD median 
income (CPI-U, CPI-W, Social Security COLA, etc.) 

• Facilitated a Rent Limit Policy Work Group, with representatives from developers, 
housing authority/nonprofit organizations, tenant rights attorneys, and property 
managers 

 



ITEM 5C:  ARCH Second Quarter 2023 Report 
Submission of ARCH Second Quarter 2023 Report 
 
Background 
The ARCH Interlocal Agreement (ILA) requires the submission of “quarterly budget 
performance and progress reports on the status of the work program elements to the 
Executive Board and the governing body of each Party.”   
 
Staff are continuing to utilize a new report format that streamlines information previously 
contained in the report. Quarterly reports may be found online. 

 
 
Staff Recommendation 
N/A 
 
Attachments 

1. ARCH Second Quarter 2023 Report 
 

https://www.archhousing.org/mission-work-program


Second Quarter 
Report 

A Regional Coalition for Housing

PREPARED BY:

2023



Table of Contents:
I. Affordable Housing Investment
II. Housing Policy and Planning

III. Housing Program Implementation
IV. Education and Outreach

V. ARCH Operations



The Housing Stability Program provides capital to targeted housing projects that serve Bellevue’s most
vulnerable residents, and funding for services that are critical for stable living.  

I. Affordable Housing Investment

ARCH Housing Trust Fund

The Housing Trust Fund invests local funding from ARCH member cities in the creation and preservation
of affordable homes for low and moderate income individuals and families in East King County. 

Bellevue Housing Stability Program

Application interest from 8 projects estimating $16.25 million in funding requests
Additional $500k in 2022 CDBG funds recommended for Kirkland Heights project
Issued 2023 Trust Fund guidelines announcing $3.5 million
Appointed 4 new members to the Community Advisory Board
Continued Council approvals from 2022 funding round
Closed financing for Horizon at Totem Lake project ($5.5M award)

Quarterly Activities:

Council approval of 2022 funding recommendations
Application interest received shown above
RFP released for 2023 funding round announcing $10.3 million

Quarterly Activities:

Figure 1.1 ARCH Funding Application Interest (2023-2024)



Special Project: Mixed Use Development in Downtown Kenmore

Project City Total Units Status

Eastgate Shelter (CFH) Bellevue 100 Nearing completion

Plymouth Crossing Bellevue 98 Nearing completion

Samma Senior (Imagine) Bothell 54 Under Construction

Together Center Redevelopment Redmond 280 First phase completed

Hope Starts Here (LifeWire) Bellevue 25 Under Construction

New Ground Kirkland (FOY) Kirkland 8 units/14 rooms Nearing financing close

Horizon at Totem Lake Kirkland 299
Financing closed, under
construction

Trailhead TOD (KCHA) Issaquah 155 Site control complete

LEO at Trailhead Issaquah 5 Funding applications

Ardea (TWG/Imagine) Kirkland 170 Council approvals

Bellevue Homes (Habitat) Bellevue 25 Council approvals

Kenmore Supportive Housing (Plymouth) Kenmore 100 Council approvals

Kirkland Heights (KCHA) Kirkland 276 Council approvals

Scattered Homes (Inclusion Homes /
Alpha)

Scattered 26 Council approvals

Spring District TOD (BRIDGE) Bellevue 235 Council approvals

Totem Six-Plex (Attain) Kirkland 6 Council approvals

1,859

Project Activity

Figure 1.2 Status of Awarded Projects in Development

48,490 square feet city-owned
property at 7010 NE 181st St. (the Holt
Property) in downtown Kenmore
City seeking proposals for mixed use
development with ownership and/or
rental housing affordable at 60% up to
120% AMI, and preference for family-
sized units
RFP finalized for release in July



II. Housing Policy and Planning

ARCH assists members with a range of local planning efforts, including comprehensive planning, housing
strategy and action plans, incentive program design, code amendments and other support.

City Project Status

ARCH-wide Rent Policy Development Community outreach

ARCH-wide
Eastside Homelessness Coordination with

KCRHA
Ongoing consultant

contract

Multi-city Middle Housing CBO Outreach Final report completed

Bellevue
C1 Strategy: Increasing Affordable Housing
Capacity on Faith-Owned Properties LUCA

Council adopted Ords.
6743 & 6744

Bellevue Downtown IOC: increase residential FAR
Council adopted Ord.

6736

Bellevue Micro-Apartments LUCA
Council adopted Ord.

6742

Bothell Middle Housing code amendments Council review

Bothell
Downtown affordable housing overlay

amendments
Council review

Kenmore Holt Property planning RFP preparation

Kirkland
85th Street Station Area Planning / inclusionary

requirements
Council adopted Ord.

4855

Kirkland
Houghton Village Shopping Center future

redevelopment
Community outreach

Issaquah Housing Action Plan Implementation Grant Planning Commission

Redmond Aff. Housing Parking Code Amendments Planning Commission

Redmond Overlake Urban Center Regulations Staff/consultant analysis

Redmond Housing Action Plan Implementation Grant Staff/consultant analysis

Sammamish Housing Action Plan Implementation Grant Planning Commission

Figure 2 ARCH Member Ongoing Housing Policy and Planning Activities



What should you be
including in your impact
report? You can start with
a brief review of your
organization's goals. 

From there, it's important
to take note of the
following questions:

Homeownership Rental

0 25 50 75 100 125

Redmond 

Bellevue 

Kirkland 

Century Communities
1 affordable, 24 market rate
50-year affordability, priced at 50 AMI

Encore at Rose Hill | Kirkland
Homeownership

Tripointe Homes
2 affordable, 31 market rate homes
50-year affordability, priced at 100 AMI

Woodlands Reserve | Kirkland (Juanita)
Homeownership

III. Housing Program Implementation

Housing Incentive & Inclusionary Programs

Figure 3.1 Units obligated under recorded Agreements (Q3 2022 through Q2 2023)

ARCH administers land use incentive and inclusionary housing programs, Multifamily Tax Exemption
programs, and other development agreements for nine ARCH members. Affordable homes become part
of the ARCH Rental and Homeownership Programs.

Project Openings



The ARCH Homeownership Program provides access to affordable homeownership in East King County
for households with limited incomes and first-time homebuyers.    

III. Housing Program Implementation

New Properties

Compliance Monitoring

Website

Training

The ARCH Rental Program provides affordable rent-restricted housing for low and moderate-income
households in mixed income developments throughout East King County.

ARCH Rental Program

ARCH Homeownership Program

Figure 3.2 ARCH Homeownership Program Monthly Transactions

New Resale

0 1 2 3 4

January 

February 

March 

April 

May 

June 

Reviewed 90-Day Compliance Report for Bloom
in Kirkland ensuring program compliance
during lease-up period. 

Reviewed Annual Compliance Reports (ACR’s)
for LU/MFTE rental properties. 
Sent ACR Review Forms outlining compliance
issues found and follow-up required.

Published updated ARCH Rental Program
Income and Rent Limits 6/15/2023.
Updated FAQ and  Renter Resources
webpages.

Conducted monthly trainings for property
managers and leasing staff
Hosted monthly Q & A sessions 



Q1  Q2 Q3 Q4  YTD

New applications for ARCH mailing list 742 457 1,199

Ownership Interest 504 297 801

Rental Interest 510 343 853

Total Number of Households seeking
affordable housing in EKC

7,112 7,569 7,569

Middle Housing Engagement Report published,
reflecting a collaboration of Eastside for All and 13
other community-based organizations to engage
underrepresented populations on the topic of
adding “middle housing” in neighborhoods that
currently allow only single-family  or similar  
housing types
Project partners included ARCH and the cities of
Bellevue, Bothell, Kenmore, Newcastle, and
Redmond.

Middle Housing Engagement Report

AFFORDABLE HOUSING INTEREST

IV. Education and Outreach

ARCH maintains information on affordable housing options in East King County; advertises new
opportunities through the ARCH Mailing List and website; and provides support to community
members in-person, through email and phone. 

Figure 4 Households Seeking Housing on the ARCH Mailing List

Panel discussion on programs to
assist buyers in making a
downpayment for a home, organized
and moderated by SKCR’s Diversity,
Equity & Inclusion (DEI) Committee
and included lending partners,
WSHFC, and Freddie Mac.

Down Payment Assistance Panel

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/61687c3f7fbc096461d80234/t/649cafeeb4690275d068cf6d/1687990255199/FINAL+ARCH+5-City+Middle+Housing+Engagement+Report.pdf


Figure 5. Summary of Quarterly and YTD Revenues and Expenses

V. ARCH Operations

ARCH Operating Fund. ARCH began the second quarter with a cash balance of $1,252,941 and finished
the quarter with a balance of $1,473,202. In Q2, some members pre-paid dues for Q3.

Thank you 
to all member jurisdictions and their
dedicated staff. 

425-861-3677

16305 NE 87th St. Suite 119, Redmond, WA 98052 

www.archhousing.org

info@archhousing.org 

Coordinating public resources and attracting greater
private investment into affordable housing; 
Sharing technical resources and staff between
jurisdictions to promote sound housing policy; 
Providing efficient shared administration of housing
programs; and 
Directly engaging the community with information
and expertise

ARCH’s mission is to preserve and increase the supply of
housing for low and moderate income households in East
King County by:

Revenues Expenses

$0 $500,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000

YTD Actual 

YTD Budget 

Q2 Actual 

Q2 Budget 




